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EMAMI FRANK ROSS LIMITED  

DIRECTORS’ REPORT  

 

To  

The Members,  

 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 107th Annual Report of your Company 

together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025.  

 

Your Directors are pleased to share with you that your Company has maintained sustainable 

growth and earned cash profit in the financial year 2024-25. 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS        ₹ in lakhs 

PARTICULARS      Standalone             Consolidated 

 

Profit/(Loss)before 

Depreciation, Tax & 

exceptional items 
 

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 

1183.23 1439.62 1182.90 1433.61 

 

Less: Depreciation 

 
 

2650.22 2099.44 2650.22 2099.44 

Profit/(Loss) before Tax & 

exceptional items 
 

(1466.99) (659.82) (1467.32) (665.83) 

 

Exceptional Items 

 

- - - - 

 

Profit /(Loss) before tax 
 

(1466.99) (659.82) (1467.32) (665.83) 

 

Less: Provision for Taxation 
 

- - - - 

 

Deferred Tax 
 

(299.13) (318.86) (299.13) (318.86) 

 

Profit/(Loss) for the year 
 

(1167.86) (340.96) (1168.19) (346.97) 

Total Comprehensive Income 

for the year 

 

 

(1228.12) (233.47) (1228.45) (239.48) 

Credit Balance Brought Forward (6948.29) (6714.80) (6917.19) (6677.69) 
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Fund available for 

appropriation 
 

(8176.41) (6948.29) (8145.64) (6917.19) 

 

Balance Carried to Balance 

Sheet 
 

(8176.41) (6948.29) (8145.64) (6917.19) 

 

The Company has prepared the Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st 

March, 2025 in terms of Section 129, 133 and Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (as 

amended) (the “Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 

as amended.  

 

NATURE OF BUSINESS 

Emami Frank Ross Limited is one of the Eastern India’s largest and oldest pharmacy chains. 

The Company has retail store operations in West Bengal, Odisha, Assam, Raipur 

(Chhattisgarh), Tripura, Bihar, Uttar Pradesh, Karnataka, Tamil Nadu and Telangana. The 

Company has also initiated e-commerce pharmacy business, currently running in Kolkata 

and nearby districts with the vision to serve the entire Eastern India and Karnataka in near 

future.  

 

Apart from just pharma, the Company also deals in several other product categories 

including medical devices, personal care, baby care, health food & drinks, sexual wellness, 

ayurvedic, herbal and natural products. The Company’s private label brand “ROSSCARE” 

has already introduced more than 200stock keeping units in the pharma and non-pharma 

categories and many of these products have been successfully launched. 

 

There has been no change in nature of business of the Company during the financial year 

ended 31st March, 2025. 

 

BUSINESS REVIEW/STATE OF COMPANY’S OPERATIONS AND INDUSTRY 

SCENARIO  

The Company runs pharmacy in name and style of “Frank Ross Pharmacy” and leisure 

business of books, media, toys and stationery in the name of “Starmark” having retail 

outlets in Kolkata at South City, Mani Square, City Centre-1, City Centre-2 and Quest Mall. 

 

The Company has achieved turnover of Rs.603.26 Crores during the year ended 31.03.2025 

as against Rs.608.06 Crores in the previous year. 

 

Frank Ross pharmacy has opened doctor’s chambers in Serampore, Kadamtala, Ganesh 

Talkies, Bongaon, Madanpur, Abhisikta, Belgharia-I, Arambag, Bajkul, Sukhobristi, 

Raigachi. 

Better growth in domestic sales would also depend on the ability of companies to align their 

product portfolio towards chronic therapies for diseases such as cardiovascular, anti-

diabetes, anti-depressants and anti-cancers, which are on the rise.  
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 

POSITION OF THE COMPANY, BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

AND THE DATE OF THIS REPORT 

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of 

the Company, between the end of the financial year and the date of this report. 

 

CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNT 

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, have been 

prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5) read with Section 134(3)(c) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act'') with respect to Directors'' Responsibility Statement, it is hereby 

confirmed that: 

 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures 

from the same; 

 

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and of the loss of the 

Company for the year ended on that date; 

 

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 

of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

 

e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company 

and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

 

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

DIVIDEND 

The directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2024-2025 in view 

of the losses for the financial year under review. 

 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

The Company did not transfer any amount to General Reserve due to loss during the 

financial year 2024-25. 

 

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

There have been no changes in Share Capital of the Company during the year under review. 
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CREDIT RATING 

Care Edge Ratings has reaffirmed the credit rating of *BBB*; Stable for the bank facilities, 

short term/ long term borrowings and commercial paper programs of the Company. 

 

India Ratings and Research has affirmed the credit Ratings *IND A-/Stable for the Long term 

loan, Fund basis limits and Non-Convertible Debentures. 

 

SUBSIDIARIES/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATES 

In compliance with Ind AS 110, Your Company has prepared Consolidated Financial 

Statements, which forms part of this Annual Report. Further pursuant to Section 129(3) of 

the Act, a statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of the 

Subsidiary in the prescribed Form AOC 1 is enclosed in Annexure I and forms part of this 

report.  

 

The Company does not have any Associate Company and Joint Venture. None of the 

companies have become or ceased to be its Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 

companies during the year under review. 

 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 The following changes took place in Directors/KMPs from 1st April, 2024 till the date of 

signing this Report: 

 

1.Mr. Anurag Jatia, Whole Time Director was reappointed for a period of 3 years with effect 

from 01stApril, 2024. 

2. Mrs. Chadaravalli Srinivasabhatta Nalini, Whole Time Director was reappointed for a 

period of 3 years with effect from 1st October, 2024. 

3.Mr. Bimal Agarwal: Chief Financial Officer (Resigned on 31st May, 2024)  

4. Ms. Priyanka Agarwal: Company Secretary & Compliance Officer (Resigned on 14th May, 

2025) 

5. Mr. Ravi Kumar Sharma has been appointed as Independent Director of the company 

w,e,f, 12.02.2025 and proposed to be appointed as the director of the company in ensuing 

Annual General Meeting. 

6. Mr. Anil Kumar Upadhaya: Chief Financial Officer (Appointed on 2nd June, 2025). 

 

DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT: 

Retirement by rotation and reappointment of Whole-time director  

The Consent of the Shareholders is being sought at the ensuing Annual General Meeting for 

continuation of holding of office by Mr. Anurag Jatia & Mr. Sujoy Chattaraj, Whole Time 

Directors of the Company, who retire by rotation and being eligible offer themselves for 

reappointment. Your directors recommend their re-appointment.  

 

Ravi Kumar Sharma who has been appointed as Additional Director of the company w.e.f, 

12.02.2025, was proposed to be appointed as the director of the company in ensuing Annual 

General Meeting. 
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DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that 

they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and 

under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). 

 

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors of the Company fulfil the conditions 

specified under the Act and are independent of the management.  

 

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Company has put in place a Familiarisation Programme for the Independent Directors 

to familiarise them with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, 

nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model etc. The details of the 

Familiarisation Programme conducted are available on the website of the Company: 

https://www.frankrosspharmacy.com 

 

EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND 

INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS 

During the year, annual performance evaluations of the Board, Committees of the Board and 

individual Directors including the Chairman of the Company, were carried out as per the 

criteria and process approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the 

Board of Directors of the Company. The Chairman and other members of the Board 

discussed upon the performance evaluation outcome and concluded that they were satisfied 

with the overall performance of the Board, its Committees and Directors individually.  

 

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:  

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 a 

separate meeting of the independent Directors of the Company was held on 20th March, 2025 

to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. The 

independent Directors also reviewed the quality, content and timeliness of flow of 

information between the Management and the Board and its committees. 

 

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 (14) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:  

The Managing Director or Whole-Time Directors of the Company were not in receipt of any 

remuneration or commission from the Company's Holding or Subsidiary companies during 

the financial year under review. 

 

EMPLOYEES AND OTHER REPORT  

None of the employees is in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limit prescribed in the 

Rule No. 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014. 

 

No SMP has been appointed/resigned during the year. 

 

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND 

OTHER EMPLOYEES AND CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS 
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For the purpose of selection of any Director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

identifies persons of integrity who possess relevant expertise, experience and leadership 

qualities required for the position. The Committee also ensures that the incumbent fulfils 

such criteria with regard to qualifications, positive attributes, independence, age and other 

criteria as laid down under the Act, or other applicable laws. The Board has, on the 

recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee framed a Policy on 

remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel.  

 

The complete Policy as approved by the Board is available on the website of the Company 

and can be accessed through the web link: https:// www.frankrosspharmacy.com. 

 

Information pertaining to Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, pertaining to the names and other 

particulars of employees is available for inspection at the Registered office of the Company 

during business hours and pursuant to the second proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act, the 

Report and the accounts are being sent to the members excluding this. Any shareholder 

interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer either at the Registered/ Corporate Office address or by email to 

info@frankrosspharmacy.com 

 

BOARD MEETINGS 

 

4Board meetings were held during the financial year 2024-2025. 

 

The detailed composition and attendance of the board members of are as follows: 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of the directors Designation No. of 

meetings 

attended 

1 Gautam Jatia Managing Director & 

CEO 

4 

2 Mrs. Chadaravalli Srinivasabhatta Nalini Whole Time Director 4 

3 Mr. Anurag Jatia Whole Time Director 3 

4 Mr. Sujoy Chattaraj Whole Time Director 3 

5 Mr. Hari Mohan Marda Independent Director 3 

6 Mrs. Karabi Sengupta Independent Director 4 

7 Mr. Ravi Kumar Sharma* Independent Director 0 

 

* Appointed with effect from 12th February, 2025. 

 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 

Audit Committee  

During the financial year from 1st April 2024 to 31st March 2025, 4(Four) meetings of the 

Audit Committee were held. 
 

http://www.frankrosspharmacy.com/
mailto:info@frankrosspharmacy.com
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The detailed composition and attendance of the members of the Audit Committee are as 

follows: 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of the directors Position No. of meetings 

attended 

1 Mr. Hari Mohan Marda Chairman 2 

2 Mr. Anurag Jatia Member 3 

3 Mrs. Karabi Sengupta Member 4 

4 Mr. Ravi Kumar Sharma* Member 0 

 

* Appointed with effect from 12th February, 2025. 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Company's Policy on Directors' 

Appointment and Remuneration  

The Board of directors of the Company had constituted a Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee in terms of the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act read with Rule 

7 of companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014 Act and Rules framed 

thereunder. Further, it was also reconstituted.  
 

During the year ended 31.03.2025, 3 (Three) meetings of the Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee were held. 

 

The detailed composition and attendance of the members of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee are as follows: 
 

Sl. No. Name of the directors Position No. of meetings 

attended 

1 Mr. Hari Mohan Marda Member 2 

2 Mrs. Karabi Sengupta Member 3 

3 Mr. Ravi Kumar Sharma* Member 0 

 

* Appointed as a member w.e.f. 12thFebruary, 2025. 

 

Share Transfer Committee  

 

As on 31st March, 2025, Mr. Sujoy Chattaraj (Chairman), Mr. Gautam Jatia, & Mr. Anurag 

Jatia are members of the Share Transfer Committee. 
 

No meeting of the Share Transfer Committee was held during the financial year from 1st 

April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025. 

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The particulars of material contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with 

Related Parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Act are provided in Form AOC-2 

prescribed under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and attached as “Annexure II” 

hereto and forms part of this Report. 
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The Company has a well-established internal financial controls framework, which is 

designed to continuously assess the adequacy, effectiveness and efficiency of internal 

financial controls. The management is committed to ensuring an effective internal financial 

controls environment, commensurate with the size and complexity of the business, which 

provides an assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. 

 

The Company has proper internal control procedures commensurate with its size and nature 

of Business. During the year the Company has appointed Saraf & Chandra LLP, Chartered 

Accountants (FRN-315096E/E300027) as Internal Auditors and also to perform professional 

services towards Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

The Company has developed and implemented a Risk Management Policy, which identifies 

major risks which may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been 

adopted by Board and is also subject to its review from time to time. Risk mitigation process 

and measures have been also formulated and clearly spelt out in the said policy which is 

available on the website of the Company and can be accessed through the web link: 

http://www.frankrosspharmacy.com.  

 

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM 

To create enduring value for all stakeholders and ensure the highest level of honesty, 

integrity and ethical behaviour in all its operations, the Company has adopted a “Whistle 

Blower Policy'' which is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed 

through the web link: http://www.frankrosspharmacy.com.   

 

AUDIT AND AUDITORS 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS  

 

At the Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2024, M/s. Agrawal Tondon & Co., 

Chartered Accountants (FRN: 329088E) were appointed as Statutory Auditor of the 

Company for the term of 5 consecutive years from the conclusion of the AGM held in year 

2019 to the conclusion of AGM to due be held in the year 2029. 

 

A certificate under section 141 of the companies Act, 2013 has been received form M/S 

Agrawal Tondon & Co to the effect that they are eligible to continue to act as Statutory 

Auditors of the company. 

 

The reports given by the Auditors on the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements 

of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 forms part of this Annual 

Report and there is no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the 

Auditors in their Reports. The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud in 

terms of the second proviso to Section 143(12) of the Act. 
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SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:  

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made 

thereunder & other applicable provisions if any, the Company has appointed Mr. Sandip 

Kumar Kejriwal., Practicing Company Secretaries vide ICSI Unique Code I2001WB209100, as 

its Secretarial Auditor to undertake Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year Ending 

31.03.2025. The Secretarial Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2025 is 

attached herewith as Annexure III, which is self-explanatory. 

 

CS Sandip Kumar Kejriwal has been appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the company for 

5 years i.e., for the financial year 2025-26 to 2029-30, subject to approval of the shareholders 

at the ensuing AGM 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Corporate Social Responsibility is the continuing commitment by the business to behave 

ethically and to contribute to economic development while improving the quality of life of 

the workforce and their families as well as of the local community and society at large. 

 

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the CSR is not applicable to the 

Company for the financial year 2024-2025. 

 

COST AUDIT 

As per the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, maintenance of 

Cost record under Section 148(1) of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

Your directors would like to take this opportunity to express their gratitude and 

appreciation for the passion, dedication and commitment of the employees and look 

forward to their continued contribution. 

  

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

Your Company strongly believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for each 

and every individual working for the Company through various interventions and practices. 

It is the continuous endeavour of the Management of the Company to create and provide an 

environment to all its employees that is free from discrimination and harassment including 

sexual harassment. The Company has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and 

redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and 

the Rules made thereunder. 

 

The Company has submitted the Annual Returns to the local authorities, as required under 

the above-mentioned Act. 
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Your Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal 

Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961 

Your Directors confirm that the Company adheres to the provisions of the Act, Maternity 

Benefit Act, 1961 and complied with the applicable provisions of the said Act during the 

year under review. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

Corporate Governance Report is not Applicable to this Company 

 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

The Directors have devised proper systems and procedures for ensuring compliance with all 

applicable Secretarial Standards as approved by the Central Government under Section 118 

(10) of the Companies Act 2013. 

 

LOANS, GUARANTEES & INVESTMENTS 

In terms of Section 186 of the Companies Act and Rules framed thereunder, details of the 

loans given and investments made by the Company have been disclosed in note no. 3 & 4 of 

the Notes to accounts of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 which 

forms part of the Annual Report. 

 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the Public during the year under review. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

Information pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, related to conservation of energy and technology 

absorption are not applicable to the Company. 

 

DETAILS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO  

During the year under review, your Company has neither earned any foreign exchange nor 

made any foreign exchange outgo. 

 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 

COURTS OR TRIBUNALS 

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals, 

which impact the going concern status. 

 

BUY BACK OF SECURITIES  

The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the financial year 2024-25 

under review. 
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ANNUAL RETURN 

The Annual Return as required under sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (‘the Act'') in form MGT-7 (for 2024-25) will be made available on the website of the 

Company and can be accessed at http://www.frankrosspharmacy.com.   

 

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR 

ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR. 

 

There was no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year. 

 

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT 

THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE 

TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH 

THE REASONS THEREOF 

 

There was no one-time settlement from Banks or Financial Institutions during the year, so no 

valuation was required to be done. 

 

DETAILS OF MALE AND FEMALE EMPLOYEE OF THE COMPANY/ GENDER RATIO 

(%)  

As on 31st March 2025, 10.51% of Company’s workforce comprised of female employees 

while 89.49% comprised of male employees. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

The directors wish to convey their appreciation to all the employees for their enormous 

personal efforts as well as their collective contribution to the company’s performance. The 

directors would also like to thank all the shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and all 

other business associates for the continuous support given by them to the company and 

their confidence in its management.               

 

 

For and On behalf of the Board 

 

 

SD/-                                                                                                            SD/- 

Gautam Jatia        Sujoy Chattaraj 

Managing Director                                                                 Whole time Director 

(DIN 00604926)        (DIN   08818352) 

 

 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 13th August, 2025 
 



 
                                                                      Annexure I 

                                                                Form No. AOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate 

Companies/Joint Ventures 

Subsidiary Details as on- 31.03.2025 

(₹ in Lakhs) 

No. Particulars Details 

1 Name of Subsidiary Lyfresh Private Limited 

2 Date since when the Subsidiary was acquired 11.07.2017 

3 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company’s reporting 

period 

NA 

4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the 

last date of the relevant Financial year in the case 

of foreign subsidiaries 

NA 

5 Share capital 600.00 

6 Reserves & surplus (605.46) 

7 Total assets 2.60 

8 Total Liabilities 8.06 

9 Investments - 

10 Turnover - 

11 Profit before taxation (0.33) 

12 Provision for taxation - 

13 Profit after taxation (0.33) 

14 Proposed Dividend - 

15 % of shareholding of Holding Company 100% 

 

For and on behalf of the Board   

 

 

SD/-                                                                                                               SD/- 

Gautam Jatia                                                                                                  Sujoy Chattaraj    

Managing Director                                                                 Whole time Director 

(DIN 00604926)                                        (DIN   08818352) 

 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 13th August 2025 
 



 

 

 
Annexure II 

Form No. AOC-2 

 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into 

by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto. 

 

1. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis 

 

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship 

 

NA 

Nature of contracts /arrangements /transactions 

 

NA 

Duration of the contracts / arrangements /transactions 

 

NA 

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any 

 

NA 

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions 

 

NA 

date(s) of approval by the Board 

 

NA 

Amount paid as advances, if any: 

 

NA 

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 

188 

 

NA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

2A. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis 

with Director(s)/Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Relatives 

 

 

 

 

 

2B. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis with  

Other Parties 

Description (1) (2) (3) 
Name(s) of the related party  

 

Suraj Finvest Pvt.Ltd. (Formerly Known 

as Sneha Gardens Private Limited) 

Diwakar Finvest Private Limited 

(Formerly known as Sneha Enclave 

Private Limited) 

PAN Emami Cosmed Limited (formerly 

known as Midkot Investment Limited) 

Nature of Relationship Refer Note-29 Related Party Disclosure 

of Financial Statements 

Refer Note-29 Related Party 

Disclosure of Financial Statements 

Refer Note-29 Related Party Disclosure of 

Financial Statements 

Nature of contracts 

/arrangements /transactions 

 

Guarantor against the Bank Loan Guarantor against the Bank Loan Guarantor against the Bank Loan 

Duration of the contracts / 

arrangements /transactions 

 

Yearly Yearly Yearly 

Description NA 

Name of the related party and nature of relationship                               NA 

Nature of Contracts / arrangements/transactions                              NA 

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ transactions                              NA 

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any                              NA 

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions 

 

                            NA 

date(s) of approval by the Board 

 

                           NA 

Amount paid as advances, if any: 

 

                           NA 

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under 

first proviso to section 188 

                          NA 



 

 

Salient terms of the contracts 

or arrangements or 

transactions including the 

value, if any 

 

Suraj Finvest Private Limited will give 

Guarantee for the loan taken by Emami 

Frank Ross Limited  

Diwakar Finvest Private Limited will 

give Guarantee for the loan taken by 

Emami Frank Ross Limited  

PAN Emami Cosmed Limited (formerly 

known as Midkot Investment Limited) will  

give  guarantee for the loan taken by Emami 

Frank Ross Limited   

Justification for entering into 

such contracts or 

arrangements or transactions 

 

For availing Loan from Banks and for 

issue of Non-Convertible 

Debentures/Bonds 

For availing Loan from Banks and for 

issue of Non-Convertible 

Debentures/Bonds 

For issue of Non-Convertible 

Debentures/Bonds 

date(s) of approval by the 

Board 

 

29th April, 2023 29th April, 2023 29th April, 2023 

Amount paid as advances, if 

any: 

 

No No No 

 

 

Description (4) (5) (6)       (7)  (8)  
Name(s) of the related 

party  

 

Ms Priti A Sureka 

Mr. Jayant Goenka 

Mr. Prashant Goenka 

Emami Foundation 

AMRI Hospitals Ltd 

Emami Papers Mills 

Limited 

A M Medical Centre 

Private Limited 

M Bhattacharyya & 

Co. Pvt Ltd 

Emami Limited 

Emami Agrotech 

Limited 

Emami Limited M Bhattacharyya & Co. 

Pvt Ltd 

Suraj Finvest 

Private 

Limited 

Diwakar 

Finvest 

Private 

Limited 

South City Projects Kolkata Ltd 

Shoppers City Maintenance Co 

Private Limited 

M Bhattacharyya & Co. Pvt Ltd 

AMRI Hospitals Ltd 

 

Nature of Relationship Refer Note-29 

Related Party 

Disclosure of 

Financial Statements 

Refer Note-29 Related 

Party Disclosure of 

Financial Statements 

Refer Note-29 Related 

Party Disclosure of 

Financial Statements 

Refer Note-

29 Related 

Party 

Disclosure 

of Financial 

Statements 

Refer Note-29 Related Party 

Disclosure of Financial Statements 

 

Nature of contracts 

/arrangements 

/transactions 

 

Sale of Goods 

 

Display charges 

 

 

Purchase of goods 

 

Guarantee 

Commission 

paid 

Rent & maintenance paid  

Duration of the contracts / 

arrangements /transactions 

 

N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A  

Salient terms of the 

contracts or arrangements 

or transactions including 

the value, if any 

 

N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A  



 

 

Justification for entering 

into such contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

 

N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A  

date(s) of approval by the 

Board 

 

29th April, 2023 29th April, 2023 29th April, 2023 29th April, 

2023 
29th April, 2023  

Amount paid as advances, 

if any: 

 

No No No No No  

 

 

 

Description (9) (10) 
Name(s) of the related party  

 

Emami Limited The Trustees Frank Ross Limited 

Employees Provident Fund 

Nature of Relationship Refer Note-29 Related Party Disclosure of Financial Statements Refer Note-29 Related Party Disclosure of 

Financial Statements 

Nature of contracts 

/arrangements /transactions 

 

Royalty Advance/Deposit given 

Duration of the contracts / 

arrangements /transactions 

 

The original agreement was renewed with effect from 1st April, 2020 for a term of 5 

(five) years on same conditions and license fees, as contained in the Original 

Agreement for  the period of renewal. 

N.A 

Salient terms of the contracts 

or arrangements or 

transactions including the 

value, if any 

 

1. The Licensee (Emami Frank Ross limited ) shall have the right to use  the 

trademark and logo of the Licensor in all its final products, documents, 

correspondences, advertising materials etc. 

2. The Licensee shall obtain necessary permits, approvals, licenses etc in 

connection with the manufacture of its goods under the said trade mark 

of the Licensor (Emami Limited). 

3. The Licensee shall maintain high standard and repute and shall follow 

clear and transparent business policies with regular statutory 

compliances with various applicable business laws. 

4. The Licensee shall not indulge into any business practice or policy which 

may harm the goodwill of the licensor as a business leader in their line of 

business. 

5. In consideration of the above, the Licensee shall pay an annual license fee 

of 0.5% of Profit before Tax or Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) per 

annum whichever is higher. Taxes/Duties/Cesses etc as applicable from 

time to time, if any, shall be payable extra. 

 

N.A 

Justification for entering into 

such contracts or 

arrangements or transactions 

 

The trade name and logo ‘Emami’ is registered in the name of the Licensor under 

the Trade Mark Act as a ‘trademark. 

The Licensee Company is desirous to use the said trademark in its products, 

correspondences, letterheads, advertisement materials in the daily newspapers, 

journals etc. 

N.A 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 

 

          SD/-                                                                                                             SD/- 

Gautam Jatia                                                    Sujoy Chattaraj  

Managing Director & CEO                                                Whole time Director 

(DIN 00604926)              (DIN   08818352) 

 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 13th August, 2025 
 

Description (11) 
Name(s) of the related party  

 

South City Projects Kolkata Ltd 

Shoppers City Maintenance Co Pvt Ltd 

M Bhattacharyya & Co. Pvt Ltd 

AMRI Hospitals Ltd 

Nature of Relationship Refer Note-29 Related Party Disclosure of Financial Statements 

Nature of contracts 

/arrangements /transactions 

 

Electricity Charges 

Duration of the contracts / 

arrangements /transactions 

 

N.A 

Salient terms of the contracts 

or arrangements or 

transactions including the 

value, if any 

 

N.A 

 

Justification for entering into 

such contracts or 

arrangements or transactions 

 

N.A 

Date of approval by the 

Board 

29th April, 2023 

Amount paid as advances, if 

any 

N.A 









































Rs In Lakhs
As at As at

31st March 2025  31st March 2024 

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2.1 5,144.90               5,167.27               
b) Capital work-in-progress 2.1 -                        26.42                    
c) Other Intangible Assets 2.2 410.36                  275.45                  
d) Right of Use Assets 2.3 5,864.57               5,256.23               
e) Intangible Assets under Development 2.2 173.86                  179.11                  

f) Financial assets
(i) Investments 3 552.97                  700.51                  
(ii) Other Financial Assets 6 2,031.57               1,408.60               

g) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 4,131.18               3,833.22               
h) Other non-current assets 8 327.54                  315.92                  

18,636.95             17,162.73             

CURRENT ASSETS
a) Inventories 9 11,671.11             10,021.14             
b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 3 39.81                    -                        
(ii) Trade receivable 5 6,315.72               7,346.31               
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 769.32                  714.99                  
(iv) Loans 4 44,770.96             53,147.35             

c) Other current assets 11 1,083.31               1,982.46               
64,650.23             73,212.25             

TOTAL ASSETS 83,287.18             90,374.98             

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a) Equity Share Capital 12 408.27                  408.27                  
b) Other Equity 13 6,623.58               7,851.71               

7,031.85               8,259.98               
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14 3,479.25               12,845.07             
(i)(a) Lease Liabilities 14 4,949.57               4,853.07               
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 15 104.10                  64.79                    

8,532.92               17,762.93             

CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14 58,950.12             55,794.19             
(i)(a) Lease Liabilities 14 1,560.05               875.71                  
(ii) Trade payables 17

(a) Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

689.14                  571.44                  

(b)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

4,234.18                               5,004.22 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 18 1,782.88               1,590.49               
b) Other current liabilities 19 162.52                  204.95                  
c) Provisions 16 343.52                  311.07                  

67,722.41             64,352.07             

TOTAL EQUITY AND  LIABILITIES 83,287.18             90,374.98             

Material accounting polices 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 1 to 52
In terms of our attached report of even date

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN:-329088E SD/- SD/-

Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj

Managing Director Director

DIN - 00604926 DIN - 08818352

SD/-

Mamta Jain

Partner 

Membership No. 061299

Dated : 29th May 2025

Place : Kolkata

Total Current Liabilities

Total Current Assets

Total Equity

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Emami Frank Ross Ltd
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

Particulars Notes

Total Non Current Liabilities

Total Non Current Assets



Rs. In Lakhs

Notes
Year ended

31st March 2025
Year ended

31st March 2024

I Revenue from Operations 20 60,325.76                  60,806.18                     

II Other Income 21 5,803.83                    6,277.79                       

III Total Income (I+II) 66,129.59                  67,083.97                     

IV Expenses :

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 49,775.32                  50,191.83                     

Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 22 (1,649.97)                  (1,995.31)                      

Employee Benefits Expense 23 6,795.39                    7,033.58                       

Finance Costs 24 6,865.50                    7,098.09                       

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2 2,650.22                    2,099.44                       

Other Expenses 25 3,160.12                    3,316.16                       

Total Expenses  (IV) 67,596.58                  67,743.79                     

V Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax (III-IV) (1,466.99)                  (659.82)                         

VI Tax Expense :

Deferred Tax 7 (299.13)                     (318.86)                         

VII  Profit / (Loss) for the year (V-VI) (1,167.86)                  (340.96)                         

VIII Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss

i Fair value changes in Equity instrument (107.73)                     7.23                               

ii Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 48.64                         146.82                           

iii Income Tax relating to above (1.17)                         (46.56)                           

Other Comprehensive income net of tax (60.26)                       107.49                           

IX Total Comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) (1,228.12)                  (233.47)                         

Earnings per equity share

i Basic (Face value Rs. 10/- each) (28.61)                       (8.35)                             

ii Diluted  (Face value Rs. 10/- each) (28.61)                       (8.35)                             

Material accounting polices 1

1 to 52

In terms of our attached report of even date

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN:-329088E SD/- SD/-

Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj

SD/- Managing Director Director

Mamta Jain DIN - 00604926 DIN - 08818352

Partner 

Membership No. 061299

Dated : 29th May 2025

Place : Kolkata

PARTICULARS

Emami Frank Ross Ltd
Statement of Profit & Loss 

For the year ended 31st March 2025

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

The accompanying notes are an integral part of
 these financial statements



Rs In Lakhs

A Equity Share Capital

1 Current reporting period (2024-25)

Balance at the beginning 
of the current reporting period

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due to 
prior period errors

Restated balance at 
the beginning of 

the current 
reporting period

Changes in equity 
share capital 

during the current 
year

Balance at the 
end of the current 
reporting period

                                                                              408.27                                 -                                  -                                  -                       408.27 

2 Previous reporting period (2023-24)

Balance at the beginning 
of the current reporting period

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due to 
prior period errors

Restated balance at 
the beginning of 

the current 
reporting period

Changes in equity 
share capital 

during the current 
year

Balance at the 
end of the current 
reporting period

                                                                              408.27                                 -                                  -                                  -                       408.27 

Other Equity

Balance as on 01.04.2023 (9,040.97)                   2,124.67                    14,800.00                  140.69                   60.81                           8,085.20      

Fair value changes in Equity instrument 7.23                       7.23             

Tax Effect on above (0.75)                      (0.75)            
Equity Component of Optionally
 Convertible Debenture (OCD)

-               

Remeasurement of Defined benefit obligation 146.82                         146.82         

Tax Effect on above (45.81)                          (45.81)          

Profit/(loss) for the year (340.98)                      (340.98)        

Balance at 31.03.2024 (9,381.95)                   2,124.67                    14,800.00                  147.17                   161.82                         7,851.71      

Balance as on 01.04.2024 (9,381.95)                   2,124.67                    14,800.00                  147.17                   161.82                         7,851.71      

Fair value changes in Equity instrument (107.73)                  (107.73)        

Tax Effect on above 14.00                     14.00           
Equity Component of Optionally
Convertible Debenture (OCD) -               

Remeasurement of Defined benefit obligation 48.64                           48.64           

Tax Effect on above (15.18)                          (15.18)          

Profit/(loss) for the year (1,167.86)                   (1,167.86)     

Balance at 31.03.2025 (10,549.81)                 2,124.67                    14,800.00                  53.44                     195.28                         6,623.58      

Material accounting polices 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of 
these financial statements

1 to 52

In terms of our attached report of even date
For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:-329088E SD/-

Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj
Managing Director   Director

DIN - 00604926 DIN - 08818352

SD/-
Mamta Jain
Partner 
Membership No. 061299

Dated : 29th May 2025
Place : Kolkata

 Equity Component 
of Optionally 
Convertible 
Debenture

(OCD) 

                      SD/-

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Equity 
Instruments 
through OCI 

 Remeasurement of 
Defined Benefit 

Plans 

Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive Income

 Total Other 
Equity  General 

Reserve 

Emami Frank Ross Ltd
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2025

Particulars



Rs in Lakhs
A Cash flow from operating activities 2024-25 2023-24

Net Profit before tax (1,466.99)                (659.82)                        
Adjustments for :-
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,650.22                 2,099.44                      
Dividend (0.80)                       (0.80)                            
Finance costs 6,865.50                 7,098.09                      
Interest income (5,608.57)                (6,212.85)                     
Provision for Doubtful Debts & Advances Written Back -                          -                               
Loss on sale/disposal of Property, Plant & equipment (net) 4.91                        10.07                           
Lease Payments (2,118.51)                (1,729.10)                     
Non Cash items (187.46)                   (39.26)                          

138.30                    565.77                         

Adjustments for working capital changes
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables and Other Liabilities (668.51)                   938.58                         
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (1,649.96)                (1,995.31)                     
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 1,030.59                 (1,349.40)                     
(Increase)/Decrease financial & non financial assets 835.64                    (1,430.44)                     
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 32.46                      (1.05)                            

(419.78)                   (3,837.62)                     
Cash generated from opreation (281.48)                   (3,271.85)                     
Less:- Direct Taxes paid/(refund received)-Net (71.53)                     (105.85)                        

Net Cash flow from opearting activities (353.01)                   (3,377.70)                     

B Cash flow from Investing activities
Proceeds from Sale of Property,Plant & Equipment 10.53                      6.66                             
Interest received 6,980.75                 1,836.04                      
Dividend 0.80                        0.80                             
Purchase of Property,Plant & Equipment (1,364.33)                (2,274.02)                     
Loan refunded/(given) 6,914.39                 (2,345.00)                     
Fixed deposit made (500.00)                   (0.75)                            

Net cash flow from ( used ) investing activities 12,042.14               (2,776.27)                     

C Cash flow from Financing activities
Repayment of Borrowings (Net) (8,110.70)                (20,220.61)                   
Redemption of Non Convertible Debentures (3,400.00)                (1,700.00)                     
Proceeds from borrowings 4,356.13                 33,405.00                    
Interest Paid Including Borrowing costs (6,205.75)                (6,889.37)                     
Principal repayment of lease liability 780.84                    851.80                         
Cash credit taken/(repaid) (net) 944.68                    653.17                         

Net cash flow from (used) financing activities (11,634.80)              6,099.99                      

                       54.33                           (53.98)
Add:- Cash & Cash Equivalents -Opening balance 714.99                    768.97                         
Cash & cash equivalents -Closing balance 769.32                     714.99                          

Notes:-

(a)

(b) As at As at 
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Cash & cash equivalents includes:-
Cash in hand 273.55                    156.09                         
-Current account 492.14                    555.71                         
Fixed Deposits with Banks [including interest accrued] 3.63                        3.19                             

Cash & Cash Equivalents in Cash Flow Statement 769.32                    714.99                         

Material accounting polices 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 1 to 52

In terms of our attached report of even date

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN:-329088E SD/- SD/-

Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj

SD/- Managing Director Director

Mamta Jain DIN - 00604926 DIN - 08818352

Partner 

Membership No. 061299

Dated : 29th May 2025

Place : Kolkata

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Net increase /(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C)

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS-7)-Statement of Cash Flow

Particulars

Emami Frank Ross Ltd
Cash Flow statement

For the year ended 31st March 2025



1 Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 25

Corporate Information
Emami Frank Ross Limited, the Company,is primarily engaged in pharmacy business in the
name of "Frank Ross Pharmacy" & leisure business of books, media, toys & Stationery in the
name of "Starmark". The Company is domiciled in India and is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is
located at Kolkata.

1 Material Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation and compliance with Ind AS

(i) This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. 

a) Basis of Preparation

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ("Act") read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 and the relevant amendment rules
issued thereafter.These IndAS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis using historical cost convention, except for the following:

1 Derivative Financial Instruments at FVTPL
2 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy

regarding financial Instruments)
3 Defined Benefit Plans which have been measured at Actuarial Valuation as required by

relevant Ind AS. 

b) Functional and presentation currency

These IndAS Financial Statements are prepared in Indian Rupee which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency. All figures are rounded off to nearest lakhs.

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies

a) Property, Plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation (other than
Freehold Land) and accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of Property, Plant &
Equipment comprises of its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable
taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use. Interest and other financial charges on loans borrowed specifically for
acquisition of capital assets are capitalised till the start of commercial production.
Depreciation is provided on the written down value method .The company has used written
down value method based on the useful life with the requirements of Part C of Schedule II of
the Companies Act, 2013.  

Leasehold property  is amortised during the period of lease.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at
each balance sheet date is classified as Capital Advances under other Non-Current Assets
and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital Work in
Progress’. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the Financial
Statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are
recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The method of depreciation, useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at each financial year end.



When significant parts of property, plant & equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant
& equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing
asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing
property plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure
and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period
during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference
between the estimated / actual disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation and useful lives
Depreciation is provided on the written down value method. The company has used written
down value method based on the useful life with the requirements of Part C of Schedule II of
the Companies Act, 2013.  

b) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

The Company’s intangible assets constitutes
i) Computer software which has finite useful economic lives and these are amortised on a

straight line basis, over their useful life of 3 years. 
ii) Tenancy right is depreciated over a period of 10 years from the date it is available for use.

iii) Online Application Software is written off  in 6 years on Straight Line basis over the estimated 
useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period.

c) Impairment of property plant and equipment and intangible assets
The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine if there
is any indication of impairment based on external or internal factors. An impairment loss is
recognisedwherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount which
represents thegreater of the net selling price of assets and their ‘value in use’. The estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rates and risks
specific to the asset.

d) Revenue Recognition
The Company derives revenue on retail trade of Pharmaceutical products and Leisure
products.
Revenue is recognised on satisfaction of performance obligation at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for of
Pharmaceutical products and Leisure products.

Contract assets and Contract Liability
Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which we referred as unbilled
revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (which we
refer as unearned revenue).

Revenue from retail sales is measured at the fair value of the consideration received.
Revenue is reduced  for discounts and rebates and Goods and Service tax.

Revenue is recognised on the delivery of the merchandise to the customer ,when the
property in goods and control are transferred for a price and no effective ownership control is
retained.
Facility management fees are recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract. Revenue
from stores displays and sponsorships are recognised based on the periods for which the
products or the sponsors advertisement are promoted.



Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of a financial
liability or a financial asset to their gross carrying amount.
Interest and Dividend income are included under the head “other income” in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.Dividend is recognised when the company’s right to receive dividend is 
established.

e) Foreign currency transactions
Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign
currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when
such value was determined.

Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting monetary
items of Company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during
the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or expenses
in the year in which they arise.

f) Inventories

Inventories are valued as lower of cost and realizable value. Cost is determined on First in First
Out basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

g) Employee benefits
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are
classified as short‐term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus
and ex‐gratia. The undiscounted amount of short‐term employee benefits to be paid in
exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense as the related service is
rendered by employees.

h) Post-employment benefits
The Company operates the following post‐employment schemes:

i) Gratuity is funded with Life insurance corporation of India . Gratuity liability is defined benefit
obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit
method done at the end of each financial year in accordance with the provision of Ind AS 19
- Employee Benefits. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in
its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net
defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. The actual return of the portfolio of plan
assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation is recognized in other comprehensive income. The effect of any
plan amendments are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

The long-term and short term classification of gratuity is based on the actuarial valuations.

ii) Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined benefit contribution scheme
and the Company recognizes the contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as
expenditure when an employee renders the related services. The Company has no
obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective funds already paid.

 



iii) Leave encashment
The Company provides for the encashment of leave with pay subject to certain rules. The
employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits, for future encashment /
availment. The liability is provided based on the number of days of unutilized leave at each
Balance Sheet date on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and
losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

iv) Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised through
Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation
as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

i)  Leases
The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and has
accordingly not restated the comparative information. The Company at the inception of a
contract, assesses whether a contract, is or contains a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Ind AS 116 introduces a single balance sheet lease accounting
model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use of assets and lease liabilities for short
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The
Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a
straight line basis over the lease term . Lessor accounting remains similar to the accounting
under the previous standard i.e. lessor continues to classify leases as finance or operating
lease. For contracts entered into before 1st April 2019, the determination of whether an
arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.



As a lessee
The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct cost incurred and an estimate of cost to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
depreciated over the useful life of the asset. On the balance sheet date, the right-of-use of
asset is included in property, plant and equipment and lease liabilities have been included in
the borrowings and other financial liabilities.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as
appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases, where the Company is a lessor, is recognised in income 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line 
with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflation.

j) Taxes
Current income tax
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with Indian Income Tax Act. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax returns vis a vis position taken in books of account which are subject to
interpretation and creates provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available in future supported by convincing evidence against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carried forward unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Such deferred tax items are
recognized, in correlation to the underlying transaction either, in OCI or directly in equity. 



k) Provisions
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; 
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of
which a reliable estimate can be made. 

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

l) Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it
is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

m) Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before OCI for the year
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

n) Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 “Statement of Cash
Flows”, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated
based on the available information.

o) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial
recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised 
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if they are held within a
business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.



Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income(FVTOCI). There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit & Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the
company may transfer the cumulative gain/loss within Other Equity.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.  Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments
The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the
company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of
fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the company’s right to receive the
dividend is established.

Preference Shares

The Company measures all investments in Preference shares at amortised cost.Subsequently
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income on EIR basis. 

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments, the Company recognizes impairment
loss allowance on trade receivables based on historically observed default rates. Impairment
loss allowance recognized during the year is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Offsetting of financial instruments

The Company offsets a financial asset and a financial liability when it currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and the Company intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

p) Segment Reporting
Identification of Segments

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to
the nature of products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The analysis of
geographical segments is based on the areas in which the customers of the Company are
located. Since the Company operates only in India there is no geographical segment. 

Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies
adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

q) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and Balances with Bank.



r) Borrowing Costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings 
are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of 
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the 
period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as 
current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment
to the borrowing costs.

2 Critical estimates and judgements
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimating uncertainty as at the balance sheet date that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

A. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The company has adopted the useful lives as specified in Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013
for Property, Plant & Equipment . The Company reviews the estimated useful lives at the end
of each reporting period. Such useful lives depend upon various factors such as usage,
maintenance practices etc. and can involve estimation uncertainty. Changes in the
expected level of usage and technological developments could impact the economic useful 
lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore, future depreciation charges could be
revised. 

B Impairment of property, plant and equipment

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs
to sell calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm's
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model
and requires the Company to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

C. Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Company's assets are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

Significant estimates are used in fair valuation of assets.

D. Employee Defined Benefit Plans

The determination of Company's liability towards defined benefit obligations to employees is
made through independent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be
recognized in the income statement and in the other comprehensive income. Such valuation
depend upon assumptions determined after taking into account inflation, promotion and
other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market.

E. Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions and contingencies are based on management’s best estimate of the liabilities
based on the facts known at the balance sheet date.



F. Estimation of current tax expenses and payable

Taxes recognized in the financial statements reflect management’s best estimate of the
outcome based on the facts known at the balance sheet date. These facts include but are
not limited to interpretation of tax laws of various jurisdictions where the group operates. Any
difference between the estimates and final tax assessments will impact the income tax as
well the resulting assets and liabilities.

G. Impairment of financial assets (including trade receivable)
Allowance for doubtful receivables represent the estimate of losses that could arise due to
inability of the Customer to make payments when due. These estimates are based on the
customer ageing, customer category, specific credit circumstances and the historical
experience of the group as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. 

H Recent pronouncements Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”)
Notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, 
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable 
to the Company.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'25

3 Non Current Investments Rs.In Lakhs

3.1

A [Investments carried at Cost ]
1 Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)
i Subsidiary
a Lyfresh Pvt Ltd

6000000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up 600.00               600.00    
Less:- Provision for diminution in value of investment (600.00)              -                     (600.00)   -                  

ii Others

a Medico Association  #
12 Shares** 0.42                   0.42         

Less:- Provision for diminution in value of investment (0.42)                  -                     (0.42)       -                  

b All India Origin Chemists & Distributors Limited #
2000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 0.20                   0.20         

Less:- Provision for diminution in value of investment (0.20)                  -                     (0.20)       -                  

c Shoppers City Maintenance Co. P Ltd #
19800 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each fully paid up 0.20                   0.20         

Less:- Provision for diminution in value of investment (0.20)                  -                     (0.20)       -                  

B [Investments carried at Fair Value through OCI ]

1 M. Bhattacharyya & Co. Private. Limited 61.06                 165.09            
222 Equity Shares of Rs. 500/- each fully paid up 

2 Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)
i Emami Limited 57.97                 42.94              

10000 Equity shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid up. 

ii Emami Realty  Limited 0.39                   0.35                
333 Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

119.42               208.38            

C Investment in Preference Shares (Unquoted)
[ Investments carried at Fair Value through OCI ]
Others

i M. Bhattacharyya & Co. Private Limited 33.25                 16.33              

35000 0% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of 
Rs.100/-each fully paid up
Redeemable at par at any time within the period of 20 years from 
date of issue @ Rs.500/- per share

ii PAN Emami Cosmed Limited

22750 8% Class B Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares
(OCRPS) of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 39.81                 50.80              

73.06                 67.13              

D Investment in Debentures (Unquoted)
[ Investments carried at Fair Value through OCI ]
Others

i M. Bhattacharyya & Co. Private Limited  -Note - 2 400.30               425.00            

425 Optionally Convertible Debentures of Rs 100000/- each fully paid up

Redeemable on or Before 120 months from the date of Issue

400.30               425.00            
592.78               700.51            

Aggregate value of Quoted Investment and market value thereof 58.36                 43.29              
Aggregate value of Unquoted Investment 534.42               657.22            
#Aggregate provision for dimunition in value of investments 600.82               600.82            

** Formed under Bombay Non - Trading Corporations Act, 1959 not having Face value of Shares
** For credit risk and provision for loss allowance refer note no 36.

Note- 1
PAN Emami to Midkot shares

Note- 2

Midkot Investments Private Limited has been changed from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company w.e.f. 13th November, 2023. Further, the name of Midkot Investments Limited has 
been changed to PAN Emami Cosmed Limited w.e.f. 8th December, 2023.

425 nos. Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures @ 100,000/- each issued by M Bhattacharya & co Pvt Ltd. Date of allotment- 12-Jan-2022. The same is convertible into equity at the option of the 
issuer , or be redeemed any time within 120 months after date of allotment @ 2% premium. 

Total(A+B)

Total(C)

Grand Total (A+B+C+D)
Total(D)

Particulars
As atAs at

31st March 2025 31st March 2024



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'25
Rs.In Lakhs

4 Loans 

Considered Good-Unsecured

To others 44,770.96      53,147.35      

Total  Current 44,770.96      53,147.35    
Total Loans 44,770.96      53,147.35    

5 Trade receivables

Current
Considered good -Unsecured*
    :Related party 142.44        52.12         
     :Others 6,173.28     6,315.72        7,294.19    7,346.31        

Credit impaired 7.09               7.09             
Less:- Allowance for doubtful debts and advances (7.09)              (7.09)            

Total  Current 6,315.72        7,346.31      

*- For credit risk and provision for loss allowance refer note no 36

Trade Receivables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2025

Less than 6 
months

6 months-1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good 6,100.67      148.70             63.19         -                3.16              6,315.72    

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have 
significant increase in credit risk

-             

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired 7.09              7.09           

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good -             

(v) Disputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant 
increase in credit risk

-             

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired -             

(vii) Less : Allowances for credit impaired 7.09              7.09           

TOTAL 6,100.67     148.70           63.19        -               3.16            6,315.72    

Trade Receivables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2024

Less than 6 
months

6 months-1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good 7,101.78      73.90               167.47       0.00              3.16              7,346.31    

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have 
significant increase in credit risk

-             

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired 7.09              7.09           

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good -             

(v) Disputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant 
increase in credit risk

-             

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired -               -             

(vii) Less : Allowances for credit impaired 7.09              7.09           

TOTAL 7,101.78     73.90             167.47      0.00             3.16            7,346.31    

6 Other Financial Assets

Security Deposits
Security Deposits-Related Parties 153.13           144.84           
Security Deposits-Others 1,366.95        1,251.82        

Other Advances
Fixed Deposits pledged with Banks [including interest 
accrued]*

511.49           11.94             

Total 2,031.57        1,408.60      

*- Includes Lien marked towards Overdraft limit of Rs. 498.75 lakhs.

31st March 2024

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

31st March 2025

Total

TotalParticulars
Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments

Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments

Particulars



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 25

Rs In Lakhs
7 Movements in Deferred Taxes

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31-Mar-19

15.30                        29.30                                 138.65                 

4,124.46                   3,831.02                            1,438.29              

(4,109.16)                 (3,801.72)                          (1,299.64)            

(22.02)                      (31.50)                               (31.50)                 

(4,131.18)                 (3,833.22)                          (1,331.14)            
4131.18 3833.22

 Movement in Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) 
 Liabilities/Provisions that are 

deducted for tax purposes when 
paid 

 Defined Benefit 
Obligation 

 On Unabsorbed 
Losses 

 Depreciation 
differences 

 Financial Assets 
(FVOCI)-Equity Shares 

 Total 

As at 01 April, 2023
Charged/(Credited) -                      
 Recognised in Profit & Loss 30.28                                                       (46.14)                             (205.87)                           (97.14)                      -                                    (318.87)               
 Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income -                                                          45.81                              -                                  -                           0.75                                   46.56                   
Recognised in Other Equity -                                                          -                                  -                                  -                           -                                    -                      
As at 31st March, 2024 (0.77)                                                       (48.90)                             (3,026.17)                        (755.19)                    29.31                                 (3,801.72)            
Add:- MAT Credit Entitlement -                                                          -                                  -                                  -                           -                                    (31.50)                 

 Net Deferred Tax Liabilities /(Asset)-as at 31-Mar-2024 (0.77)                                                       (48.90)                             (3,026.17)                        (755.19)                    29.31                                 (3,833.22)            

As at 01 April, 2024
Charged/(Credited)
 Recognised in Profit & Loss (4.17)                                                       (5.05)                               (199.20)                           (100.19)                    -                                    (308.61)               
 Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income -                                                          15.17                              -                                  -                           (14.00)                               1.17                     
Recognised in Other Equity -                                                          -                                  -                                  -                           -                                    -                      

As at 31st March, 2025
(4.94)                                                       (38.78)                             (3,225.37)                        (855.38)                    15.31                                 (4,109.16)            

Add:- MAT Credit Entitlement -                                                          -                                  -                                  -                           -                                    (22.02)                 
 Net Deferred Tax Liabilities /(Asset)-as at 31-Mar-2025 (4.94)                                                       (38.78)                             (3,225.37)                        (855.38)                    15.31                                 (4,131.18)            

Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Asset) (Net)

Particulars
Deferred Tax Liability

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Asset) (Gross)

Add:- MAT Credit Entitlement



Rs. In Lakhs

Note7(ii) Effective tax reconciliation
Income Tax Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Current Tax -                   -                     
Deferred Tax (299.13)            (318.86)              
Total Income tax Expense recognised in the current year              (299.13)               (318.86)

The income tax expense can be reconciled
to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Profit before tax (1,466.99)          (659.83)              
Applicable tax rate 31.20% 31.20%

Computed Tax Expense              (457.70)               (205.87)

Add/(Deduct)                       -                          -   

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/(taxable)               886.19                 620.15 

in calculating taxable income
Tax efftect of income which are deductible              (706.12)               (592.59)

(Excess)/Short Provision for Earlier Years                       -                          -   

Tax effect of certain temporary differences measured at lower rates              (100.19)                 (97.13)

Others                 78.69                 (43.42)

Total Income Tax Expense/(Credit)              (299.13)               (318.86)



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'25
Rs.In Lakhs

8 Other non-current assets

Capital Advances 11.98               46.93              

Other advances
Prepaid Expenses 8.61                 2.43                
Prepaid Lease Rentals 306.95             266.56            

Total 327.54             315.92            

9 Inventories-At lower of cost and Net realisable value

Total 11,671.11        10,021.14       

10 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with Banks
On Current Accounts 484.10             536.77            

Other Bank Balance
Fixed Deposits with Banks 
[including interest accrued]

3.63                 3.19                

Cheques in hand 8.04                 18.94              
Cash in hand 273.55             156.09            

Total 769.32             714.99            

11 Other current assets

Considered good ,Unsecured

Advance to Employees Provident Fund Trust* 79.00               799.00            
Advance to Directors 19.44               21.09              
Advance to Employees 90.78               80.28              
Insurance Claim Receivable 20.13               52.49              
Balances with Statutory Authorities 633.99             701.52            
Prepaid Expenses 181.72             223.80            
Advance against Expenses 58.25               104.28            

Total 1,083.31          1,982.46         

* :- (Refer Note No. 43)

Stock- In-Trade 11,671.11        10,021.14       

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

31st March 2025 31st March 2024



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'25

12 Equity Share Capital
Rs.In Lakhs

As at
 31st March, 2025

As at
 31st March, 2024

Authorised
58,00,000  Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 580.00                        580.00                                       

6,20,000 Non Cumulative Redeeemable Preference shares of Rs. 100/- each 620.00                        620.00                                       

1,200.00                     1,200.00                                 
Issued,Subscribed & Fully Paid up

40,82,707 Equity Shares Rs.10/- Each fully paid up 408.27                        408.27                                       

408.27                        408.27                                     

Reconciliation of Number of Shares

Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount

40,82,707                            408.27                        40,82,707                                 408.27                         
-                                          -                                -                                              -                                

40,82,707                            408.27                        40,82,707                              408.27                       

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions Attached to Shares

The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares as at the end of the reporting period is stated as below:-

Number of Shares Held % of Holding Number of Shares Held % of Holding

PAN Emami Cosmed Limited 6,93,747                              16.99                           6,93,747                                 16.99                          
Suraj Finvest Private Limited 15,35,137                            37.60                           15,35,137                              37.60                          
Diwakar Finvest Private Limited 14,02,678                            34.36                           15,02,678                              36.81                          

Note:

Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March'2025

Sl.No Promoter name
No.of Shares as on 

01.04.2024
Change during the 

year
No.of Shares as 
on 31.03.2025

% of Total shares
%Change during 

the year

1 PRITI  A SUREKA 1,04,135                                1,00,000                       2,04,135                                   5.00% 96.03%
2 JAYANT GOENKA 15,448                                    -                                 15,448                                       0.38% 0.00%
3 USHA AGARWAL 4,000                                      -                                 4,000                                         0.10% 0.00%
4 PRASHANT GOENKA 2,655                                      -                                 2,655                                         0.07% 0.00%
5 PAN EMAMI COSMED LIMITED - Note - 1 6,93,747                                -                                 6,93,747                                   16.99% 0.00%
6 SURAJ FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED 15,35,137                              -                                 15,35,137                                 37.60% 0.00%
7 DIWAKAR FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED 15,02,678                              (1,00,000)                     14,02,678                                 34.36% -6.65%

TOTAL 38,57,800                            -                                38,57,800                              94.49%

Sl.No Promoter name  No.of Shares as on 
01.04.2023 

 Change during the 
year 

 No.of Shares as on 
31.03.2024 

 % of Total shares 
 %Change during 

the year 
1 PRITI  A SUREKA 1,04,135                                -                                 1,04,135                                   2.55% 0.00%
2 JAYANT GOENKA 15,448                                    -                                 15,448                                       0.38% 0.00%
3 USHA AGARWAL 4,000                                      -                                 4,000                                         0.10% 0.00%
4 PRASHANT GOENKA 2,655                                      -                                 2,655                                         0.07% 0.00%
5 PAN EMAMI COSMED LIMITED - Note - 1 6,93,747                                -                                 6,93,747                                   16.99% 0.00%
6 SURAJ FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED 15,35,137                              -                                 15,35,137                                 37.60% 0.00%
7 DIWAKAR FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED 15,02,678                              -                                 15,02,678                                 36.81% 0.00%

TOTAL 38,57,800                            -                                38,57,800                              94.49%
Note:

1 Midkot Investments Private Limited has been changed from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company w.e.f. 13th November. 2023. Further, the name of Midkot Investments Limited has been changed to 
PAN Emami Cosmed Limited w.e.f. 8th December, 2023.

Equity Shares held by Promoters at the end of the current year

Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March'2024

Equity Shares held by Promoters at the end of the Previous year

Particulars

Particulars

Total

 As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

The Company has only one class of Equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend
in Indian Rupees . The dividend proposed , if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

In the event of liquidation of the company the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no
such preferential  amounts exist currently.The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

As at 31st March' 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Name of the shareholder

Balance at the Beginning

Company has issued 20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each on preferential basis in the lieu of unsecured loan amounting to Rs.2 Crores received from Diwakar Finvest Private Limited & Suraj Finvest Private 
Limited 

Shares Issued during the year 
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13 Other Equity

Rs.In Lakhs

General Reserve
As per Last Balance Sheet 2,124.67                 2,124.67                
Add: Transferred during the year -                         2,124.67                  -                         2,124.67                    

Retained Earnings
As per Last Balance Sheet (9,381.95)                (9,040.97)               
Add: Profit/Loss for the year (1,167.86)                (10,549.81)               (340.98)                  (9,381.95)                   

Other Comprehensive Income*
As per Last Balance Sheet 308.99                    201.50                   
Add: Movement in OCI during the year (60.27)                     248.72                     107.49                   308.99                       

Optionally Convertible Debentures-Unsecured (Note-13.1) 14,800.00               14,800.00                14,800.00              14,800.00                  

*:- Includes re-measurement gains/losses on defined benefit
plans and gain/loss on fair value of investments

Total 6,623.58                  7,851.71                 

13.1
Zero Coupon Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD)
The company has restructure its finances and has issued 14800 zero coupon unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures @ Rs.1,00,000/- each on 
preferential basis amounting to Rs.148 crores in F Y 22-23 in pursuance of articles of association of company and as approved by board of directors and 
shareholders of the company.

The OCDs shall be optionally convertible into the equity shares of the company and/ or redeeemable at any time at the option of the issuer within a period of 10 
years from the date of allotment. The OCD shall be redeemed within a period of 30 days after the expirey of 10 years i.e. at the end of tenure of the OCD if not 
converted into equity shares. If the debentures are redeemed, then the debentures shall be redeemed at a premium to ensure an internal rate of return of 10% 
p.a.

Particulars
As at

 31st March, 2025
As at

 31st March, 2025
As at

 31st March, 2024
As at

 31st March, 2024



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'25
Rs. In Lakhs

14 Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings

Secured

From Banks # 7,000.27         15,110.97       
Less:- Current Maturities 6,527.30         472.97               7,665.90         7,445.07              

Non-Convertible Debentures ## 5,400.00         8,800.00         
Less:- Current Maturities 2,400.00         3,000.00           3,400.00         5,400.00              

-                     
Vehicle Loan 6.28                    -                         

-                      
Total-Borrowings-(i) 3,479.25           12,845.07          

(i)(a) Lease Liability :
Long Term Maturities of Lease Obligation 4,949.57           4,853.07              

Total-Lease Liability-(i)(a) 4,949.57           4,853.07              

Total-Non Current- A 8,428.82           17,698.14          

(i) Borrowings
Loans Repayable on Demand
Secured Loan from Banks
Cash Credit [ Note 14.1 ] 879.97             (64.71)              
Working Capital Demand Loan [ Note 14.1 ] 8,900.00         9,779.97           6,400.00         6,335.29              

Unsecured
Related Party 40,241.50        38,393.00           

Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings-Secured 8,927.30           11,065.90           
Term Loan from Banks # 6,527.30         7,665.90         
Non-Convertible Debentures ## 2,400.00         3,400.00         

Vehicle Loan 1.35                    -                         

Total-Borrowings-(i) 58,950.12        55,794.19          

(i)(a) Lease Liability :
Current Maturities of Lease Obligation 1,560.05           875.71                 

Total-Lease Liability-(i)(a) 1,560.05           875.71                

Total-Current-B 60,510.17        56,669.90          
Total Borrowings (A+B) 68,938.99        74,368.04          

  # Refer Note 28

14.1    

##Secured Rated,listed and unlisted redeemable  Non Convertible debenture (NCD)

15 Other Financial Liabilities

Interest due to MSME 11.96                 5.34                      
Deposit against Rent 70.11                 22.50                   
Deposit received from Franchise & Agent 22.03                 36.95                   

Total Non Current 104.10               64.79                   

The company has issued 980 listed secured Rated & 220 unlisted secured Rated redeemable & non convertible debentures of 
face value of Rs 10,00,000/- each on private placement basis aggregating to Rs 120 crores (98 crores +22 crores) during FY22-
23 in pursuance of articles of association of company and as approved by board of directors of the company.

 As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Bank-1 -Cash Credit And Working Capital Demand Loan are secured  primarily by way of hypothecation on the entire Current 
Assets of the company existing and future comprising of Stock-in-trade, receivables , book debts and other current assets. These 
loans are further secured Collateraly by way of Hypothecation / mortgage on all  fixed assets (excluding vehicles) of the 
company, both present and future. The loan carries interest @ 9.5% p.a.

The coupon related to NCDs will be linked to and be equivalent to average of 1year MCLR (ie. Marginal Cost of Funds Based 
Lending Rate) of 4 banks viz. ICICI Bank, HDFC Bank, SBI and Bank of Baroda plus applicable Spread and shall be reset on 
quarterly basis at the begining of each quarter ( i.e. on April 1, July 1, October 2, and January 1 of each year) As on date of 
execution of this Deed, the Coupon comprises of (i) the average 1-year MCLR as on April 1, 2024 of 8.96% p.a and (ii) spread of 
2.04% p.a.

 As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024
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16 Provisions

Provision for Employee Benefits*
For Gratuity 169.99        161.56                     
For Leave 173.53        343.52     149.51                     311.07                     

Total 343.52     311.07                   
* :- (Refer Note No. - 34.1 & 34.2)

17 Trade payables

a
Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

689.14     571.44                     

b
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

4,234.18  5,004.22                 

Total 4,923.32  5,575.66                

Disclosure as required by Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006

 As at
31st March 2025 

 As at 
31st March 2024 

689.14                   571.44                     
11.96                      5.34                          

-                           -                           

-                           -                           

-                           -                           

-                           -                           

Note : Identification of micro and small enterprises is basis intimation received from vendors.

Trade Payables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2025

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

3 years
(i) MSME 672.08           15.94           0.03                           1.09                           689.14        
(ii) Others 3,126.40        925.60        112.16                      70.02                         4,234.18    
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others

TOTAL 3,798.48      941.54       112.19                     71.11                        4,923.32    

Trade Payables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2024

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

3 years
(i) MSME 570.71           0.12             0.11                           0.50                           571.44        
(ii) Others 2,750.60        2,004.69     153.68                      95.25                         5,004.22    
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others

TOTAL 3,321.31      2,004.81    153.79                     95.75                        5,575.66    

18 Other Financial Liabilities

Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings 856.49     644.08                     

Other Payables
Employee Expenses 840.22        831.79                     
Liabilities for Expenses 86.17           926.39     114.62                     946.41                     

Total 1,782.88  1,590.49                

19 Other Current Liabilities

Statutory Liabilities 145.29     196.49                     
Advance from Customers 17.23        8.46                          

Total 162.52     204.95                   

TotalParticulars

Outstanding for the following period from 
due date of payments

 As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

 As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

 As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

 As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Outstanding for the following period from 
due date of payments

TotalParticulars

D. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid
E. Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such 
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises 

Particulars

A(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid
A(ii) Interest amount remaining unpaid
B. Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro,Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act,2006, along with the amount of the payment made to 
the supplier beyond the appointed day.

C. Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been 
paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest 
specified under the Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006
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Rs. In Lakhs

20  Revenue from Operations 

Sale of Products 59,536.87             60,346.49           

Sale of Services
Rental Income 199.88           199.88                  83.03             83.03                  

Other Operating Revenues
Income From Store Displays 557.67           372.14           
Facility Management Fees 31.34             589.01                  4.52               376.66                

Total 60,325.76             60,806.18           

21  Other Income 

Interest Income
Interest on Loan given 5,518.75               6,131.81             

Interest on Others
Interest income on Security Deposit at Amortised Cost 69.76             69.66             
Interest on Deposit 20.07             1.54               
Interest on Income Tax Refund -                89.83                    9.84               81.04                  

Dividend Income 0.80                      0.80                    

Insurance Claim 0.32                      19.57                  
Liabilities Written Back 187.46                  39.26                  
Miscellaneous Receipts 6.67                      5.31                    

Total 5,803.83               6,277.79             

22  Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 

(I) Opening Inventory 10,021.14             8,025.83             

(II) Closing Inventory 11,671.11             10,021.14           

(Increase)/Decrease (1,649.97)              (1,995.31)           

23  Employee Benefits Expense 

Salaries and Wages 6,144.88               6,332.75             
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 506.03                  516.24                
Staff Welfare Expense 144.48                  184.59                

Total 6,795.39               7,033.58             

 Year ended
31st March 2025 

 Year ended
31st March 2024 

 Year ended
31st March 2025 

 Year ended
31st March 2024 

 Year ended
31st March 2025 

 Year ended
31st March 2024 

 Year ended
31st March 2025 

 Year ended
31st March 2024 



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'25

Rs In Lakhs

24  Finance Costs 

Interest Expense on Lease obligation 872.17       581.64            
Interest Expense- Debentures & Bonds 707.75       1,346.43         
Interest Expense - Bank & Others 4,936.59    4,878.71         
Other Borrowing Costs 348.99       291.31            

Total 6,865.50    7,098.09         

25  Other Expenses 

Power & Fuel 412.02       351.65            
Rent & License Fees 421.69       465.33            
Maintenance Charges 666.46       618.94            
Security Charges 89.36         74.37              
Insurance 47.04         33.25              
Rates & Taxes 92.35         123.65            
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 292.43       362.50            
Commission 33.46         43.93              
Professional & Legal Charges [Refer note - 26] 278.59       393.01            
Travelling & Conveyance expenses 197.79       297.07            
Internet and other communication expenses 96.87         83.26              
Amortisation of Security Deposit on Rent 70.56         60.63              
Loss on sale / discard of Fixed Assets 4.91          10.07              
Miscellaneous Expenses 456.59       398.50            

Total 3,160.12    3,316.16         

 Year ended
31st March 2025 

 Year ended
31st March 2024 

 Year ended
31st March 2025 

 Year ended
31st March 2024 
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Rs. In Lakhs

26 Payment To Auditors

Particulars

Audit Fees 17.10                            17.10                                
Tax Audit Fees 1.80                              1.80                                  
Limited Review 2.10                              2.10                                  
Other Services 9.52                              7.98                                  

Total 30.52                            28.98                                

27 Information for Earnings per share as per IND AS 33

Net Profit (1,167.86)                      (340.96)                             
Weighted average number of shares 40,82,707 40,82,707
Earnings per share - Basic & diluted (28.61)                           (8.35)                                 

Particulars
As at

 31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

As at 
31st March 2024
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Rs. In Lakhs

28 Details of Borrowings:-
Details of Term Loans from Bank

Sl. Type of Loan Security

No.
1 Principal amount                    443.67 1,109.17      

Date Amount Date Amount
30-Apr-25 55.46            30-Apr-24 55.46      
31-May-25 55.46            31-May-24 55.46      
30-Jun-25 55.46            30-Jun-24 55.46      
31-Jul-25 55.46            31-Jul-24 55.46      

31-Aug-25 55.46            31-Aug-24 55.46      
30-Sep-25 55.46            30-Sep-24 55.46      
31-Oct-25 55.46            31-Oct-24 55.46      
30-Nov-25 55.46            30-Nov-24 55.46      

31-Dec-24 55.46      
31-Jan-25 55.46      
28-Feb-25 55.46      
31-Mar-25 55.46      
30-Apr-25 55.46      
31-May-25 55.46      
30-Jun-25 55.46      
31-Jul-25 55.46      

31-Aug-25 55.46      
30-Sep-25 55.46      
31-Oct-25 55.46      
30-Nov-25 55.46      

-          
2 Term Loan-Rupee Principal amount                1,998.40 4,498.90      

Date Amount Date Amount
30-Apr-25 166.70                30-Apr-24 166.70          

31-May-25 166.70                31-May-24 166.70          

30-Jun-25 166.70                30-Jun-24 166.70          

31-Jul-25 166.70                31-Jul-24 166.70          

31-Aug-25 166.70                31-Aug-24 166.70          

30-Sep-25 166.70                30-Sep-24 166.70          

31-Oct-25 166.70                31-Oct-24 166.70          

30-Nov-25 166.70                30-Nov-24 166.70          

31-Dec-25 166.70                31-Dec-24 166.70          

31-Jan-26 166.70                31-Jan-25 166.70          

28-Feb-26 166.70                28-Feb-25 166.70          

31-Mar-26 164.70                31-Mar-25 166.70          

30-Apr-25 166.70          

31-May-25 166.70          

30-Jun-25 166.70          

31-Jul-25 166.70          

31-Aug-25 166.70          

30-Sep-25 166.70          

31-Oct-25 166.70          

30-Nov-25 166.70          

31-Dec-25 166.70          

31-Jan-26 166.70          

28-Feb-26 166.70          

31-Mar-26 166.70          

30-Apr-26 166.70          

31-May-26 166.70          

30-Jun-26 164.70          

3 Term Loan-Rupee 10.25% Principal amount                2,291.67 4,791.67      

Date Amount Date Amount
30-Apr-25 208.33          30-Apr-24 208.33          
31-May-25 208.33          31-May-24 208.33          
30-Jun-25 208.33          30-Jun-24 208.33          
31-Jul-25 208.33          31-Jul-24 208.33          

31-Aug-25 208.33          31-Aug-24 208.33          
30-Sep-25 208.33          30-Sep-24 208.33          
31-Oct-25 208.33          31-Oct-24 208.33          
30-Nov-25 208.33          30-Nov-24 208.33          
31-Dec-25 208.33          31-Dec-24 208.33          
31-Jan-26 208.33          31-Jan-25 208.33          
28-Feb-26 208.33          28-Feb-25 208.33          

31-Mar-25 208.33          
30-Apr-25 208.33          
31-May-25 208.33          
30-Jun-25 208.33          
31-Jul-25 208.33          

31-Aug-25 208.33          
30-Sep-25 208.33          
31-Oct-25 208.33          
30-Nov-25 208.33          
31-Dec-25 208.33          
31-Jan-26 208.33          
28-Feb-26 208.33          

15%p.a on outstanding 
INR

1st Charge by way of Hypothecation / mortgage on all 
the fixed assets (movable and Immovable) of the 
company, both present and future excluding Vehicles. 
.The same is further secured by pledge of shares by a 
promoter shareholder 

First charge by way of Hypothecation / mortgage on all 
the fixed assets (movable and immovable) of the 
company, both present and future.Second charge by 
way of hypotecation of the entire Current assets of the 
company, existing and future, comprising , inter alia, of 
stocks of raw material, work in progress, finished goods, 
receivables, book debts nad other current assets.

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

Working Capital_term 
Loan- Under ECLGS of 

NCGTC

9.25% p.a on 
oustanding INR

Second charge over all existing primary & collateral 
securities including mortagages created in favour of the 
bank, subject to the subsisting charges created over 
various primary and collateral securities, including 
securities charged by third parties.

Amount outstanding Amount outstanding

as on 31-Mar-25 as on 31-Mar-24

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

ROI as on 31-Mar-25

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule



4 Term Loan-Rupee 10.25% Principal amount                2,291.67 4,791.67      

Date Amount Date Amount
30-Apr-25 208.33          30-Apr-24 208.33          
31-May-25 208.33          31-May-24 208.33          
30-Jun-25 208.33          30-Jun-24 208.33          
31-Jul-25 208.33          31-Jul-24 208.33          

31-Aug-25 208.33          31-Aug-24 208.33          
30-Sep-25 208.33          30-Sep-24 208.33          
31-Oct-25 208.33          31-Oct-24 208.33          
30-Nov-25 208.33          30-Nov-24 208.33          
31-Dec-25 208.33          31-Dec-24 208.33          
31-Jan-26 208.33          31-Jan-25 208.33          
28-Feb-26 208.33          28-Feb-25 208.33          

31-Mar-25 208.33          
30-Apr-25 208.33          
31-May-25 208.33          
30-Jun-25 208.33          
31-Jul-25 208.33          

31-Aug-25 208.33          
30-Sep-25 208.33          
31-Oct-25 208.33          
30-Nov-25 208.33          
31-Dec-25 208.33          
31-Jan-26 208.33          
28-Feb-26 208.33          

Total Outstanding as at year end-Principal 7,025.41               15,191.41    
Current Maturities-Principal 6,527.30               7,665.90      

Sl. Type of Loan Security
No.

1 Principal amount                             -          1,600.00 

Date Amount Date Amount
21-Apr-24 1,600.00       

`

2 Principal amount                4,200.00        4,200.00 

Date Amount Date Amount
30-Jun-25 600.00                30-Jun-25 600.00          
30-Sep-25 600.00                30-Sep-25 600.00          
31-Dec-25 600.00                31-Dec-25 600.00          
31-Mar-26 600.00                31-Mar-26 600.00          
30-Jun-26 600.00                30-Jun-26 600.00          
30-Sep-26 600.00                30-Sep-26 600.00          
31-Dec-26 600.00                31-Dec-26 600.00          

3 Principal amount                             -             800.00 

Date Amount Date Amount
30-Jun-24 400.00        
30-Sep-24 400.00        

4 Principal amount                             -          1,000.00 

Date Amount Date Amount
31-Dec-24 500.00        
31-Mar-25 500.00        

5 Principal amount                1,200.00        1,200.00 

Date Amount Date Amount
31-Mar-27 600.00                31-Mar-27 600.00        
30-Jun-27 600.00                30-Jun-27 600.00        

Details of Vehicle Loan
Sl.

No.
1 Vehicle Loan 9.50% pa. on monthly 

reducing basis
Secured by first charge /mortgage on the respective 
vehicles

Principal amount-Rs.8 Lakhs                        7.63 -                

Type of Loan ROI as on 31-Mar-25 Security

Bond Listed 48 Cr 
(INE711X07070)

10.25%p.a on 
outstanding INR

Average of 1 year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICICI Bank, 
HDFC Bank, SBI & Bank of Baroda plus applicable spread 
rates 

First charge by way of Hypothecation / mortgage on all 
the fixed assets (movable and immovable) of the 
company, both present and future.Second charge by 
way of hypotecation of the entire Current assets of the 
company, existing and future, comprising , inter alia, of 
stocks of raw material, work in progress, finished goods, 
receivables, book debts nad other current assets.

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

ROI as on 31-Mar-25 Amount outstanding Amount outstanding
as on 31-Mar-25 as on 31-Mar-24

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

Bond Listed 
(INE711X07062)

10.25%p.a on 
outstanding INR

Average of 1 year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICICI Bank, 
HDFC Bank, SBI & Bank of Baroda plus applicable spread 
rates 

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

Bond Listed 
(INE711X07054)

10.25%p.a on 
outstanding INR

Average of 1 year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICICI Bank, 
HDFC Bank, SBI & Bank of Baroda plus applicable spread 
rates 

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

Bond UnListed 
(INE711X07096)

10.25%p.a on 
outstanding INR

Average of 1 year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICICI Bank, 
HDFC Bank, SBI & Bank of Baroda plus applicable spread 
rates 

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

Bond UnListed 
(INE711X07088)

10.25%p.a on 
outstanding INR

Average of 1 year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICICI Bank, 
HDFC Bank, SBI & Bank of Baroda plus applicable spread 
rates 

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

Amount outstanding Amount outstanding
as on 31-Mar-25 as on 31-Mar-24

  Equated Monthly Instalment of 
Rs.16,510/- each up to 

05/12/2029 

 Nil 
Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule
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29 Related Party Disclosure

I) Parties where control exists
Subsidiary
Lyfresh Pvt Ltd- wholly owned subsidiary

II) Key Managerial Personnel & Other Directors
Key Managerial Personnel Description of Relationship

1 Mr. Gautam Jatia Managing Director  & Chief Executive Officer
2 Mr. Sujoy Chattaraj Wholetime Director 
3 Ms. Chadaravalli Srinivasa Bhatta Nalini Wholetime Director
4 Mr. Anurag Jatia Wholetime Director 
5 Mr. Bimal Agarwal [Joined w.e.f 29-04-2023 & Resigned on 31-05-2024] Chief Financial Officer
6 Ms. Amrita Bhattacharya [Resigned on 20-12-2023] Company Secretary 
7 Ms. Priyanka Agrawal [Joined w.e.f 12-02-2024 & Resigned on 14-05-2025] Company Secretary 

Other Directors
1 Mr. Debashish Bhaumik [ Resigned on 17-07-2024 ] Independent Director
2 Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah [ Resigned on 14-08-2024 ] Independent Director
3 Mrs. Karabi Sengupta Independent Director
4 Mr. Ram Gobind Ganeriwala [ Appointed on 13-08-2024 & Resigned on 26-12-2024 ] Independent Director
5 Mr. Hari Mohan Marda [Appointed on 29-05-2024 ] Independent Director
6 Mr. Ravi Kumar Sharma [Appointed on 12-02-2025] Independent Director

III) Relatives of Key Mangerial personnel
1 Mrs. Vandana Jatia

IV) Entities having significant influence over the group

1

2 Suraj Finvest Private Limited [ name changed from Sneha Gardens Pvt. Ltd. ] [ Company is an associate of the Entity ]
3 Diwakar Finvest Private limited ( formerly known as Sneha enclave private ltd )[ Company is an associate of the Entity ]

V) Other related parties with which Company has transaction
1 AMRI Hospitals Ltd. (up to 20.09.2023)
2 Archana promoters & Developers Pvt Ltd
3 Emami Agrotech Ltd.
4 Emami Realty Ltd.
5 Emami Art Pvt. Ltd
6 Emami Ltd.
7 Emami Paper Mills Ltd.
8 Emami Foundation
9 M Bhattacharyya & Co. Pvt. Ltd.

10 Niramay Distributors Pvt Ltd.
11 PAN Emami Cosmed Ltd.
12 Premier Ferro Alloys & Securities Ltd .
13 Shopper's city maintenance company Pvt ltd
14 South city Projects Kolkata Ltd.
15 Shri Prashant Goenka
16 Nayee Disha Communications Pvt ltd
17 Shri Jayant Goenka 
18 Smt Priti A Surekha 
19 A M Medical Centre Pvt Ltd
20 Emami Frank Ross Limited Employees Gratuity Fund
21 The Trustees Frank Ross Limited Employees Provident Fund

Details of Related Party Transactions Rs in Lakhs
Description of relationship Nature of

with party Transaction 2024-25 2023-24 As on 31.03.25 As on 31.03.24
Subsidiary Reimbursement of expenses 0.35                   6.66               7.00                         6.66                            
Key Managerial Personnel Salary 176.44              324.17          (9.01)                       (8.47)                          

Perquisites 10.95                17.16             -                           -                              
Sale of Goods 0.81                   0.59               0.03                         0.03                            
Loans & Advance Given 17.80                96.63             19.44                      24.17                          

Other Directors Sitting fees 2.70                   3.15               -                           (0.14)                          
Salary 15.08                13.76             0.76                         (0.76)                          
Perquisites 1.51                   1.51               -                           -                              

Other Entities Sale of Goods 78.54                3,346.79       127.06                    52.12                          
Facility Management Fees 4.26                   -                 
Display Charges 32.71                49.66             15.38                      -                              
Rent Received 0.47                   0.47               0.25                         -                              
Dividend Received 0.80                   0.80               -                           -                              
Purchase of Assets -                     -                 -                           -                              
Purchase of Goods 8,202.13          9,433.15       (499.59)                  (429.08)                      
Guarantee Commission Paid 8.19                   81.54             (5.32)                       -                              
Interest on Loan taken 3,163.28          2,084.92       (856.50)                  (644.08)                      
Rent & maintenance paid 419.74              406.42          (32.52)                    (96.94)                        
Royalty 11.80                11.80             -                           -                              
Electricity Charges 64.79                31.52             1.57                         (1.92)                          
Interest on Loan Given -                     -                 -                           -                              
Donation Paid 6.00                   6.00               -                           -                              
Advance/Deposit given 11.29                1,777.00       255.13                    820.02                       
Reimursment of exp 225.57              318.66          45.51                      -                              
Loan Given refunded -                     -                 -                           -                              
Loan Taken 20,814.73       38,768.00     (40,241.50)            (38,393.00)                
Loan Taken refund back 18,966.23       5,363.00       -                           -                              
Post employment benefit expense 50.00                10.00             (169.99)                  (161.56)                      

**- Figures in brackets denote Credit Balance

For the Financial year Amount outstanding **

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel

PAN Emami Cosmed Limited [named changed from Midkot Investments Limited]
[Company was an associate of the Entity upto 14.02.2023. Now a promoter company]



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'25
Rs. In Lakhs

30

31 Contingent Liabilities & Commitments :-
a Contingent Liabilities

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Bank Guarantees 600.78         586.78                 
Disputed GST Demands under appeal 161.22         161.22                 

b Commitments

32 Assets given on Operating Lease

a

b

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Lease contributions for the year 0.40                     0.40                        
Minimum Lease payment contributions
-Not later than one Year 0.40                     0.40                        
-Later than one year but not later than five years 2.00                     2.00                        
-Later than 5 years 12.40                   12.80                     

33 Assets taken on Operating Lease

a

-Not later than one Year 2,149.36            1,560.05             1,206.51     875.71                 
-Later than 1 Year 6,663.55            4,949.57             6,533.63     4,853.07             

The difference between minimum lease payments and the present value of minimum lease payments of Rs. 2303.29 lakhs
(P.Y- Rs. 2011.36 lakhs) represents interest not due .

The company has taken shops on rent. The total minimum lease payments and present value of minimum
lease payments are as follows:-

31-Mar-25

 Minimum 
Lease 

payments 

 Present value of 
Minimum lease 

payments 

31-Mar-24

 Minimum 
Lease 

payments 

 Present value of 
Minimum lease 

payments 

Particulars

Particulars

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future 
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Therefore, Net Deferred Tax Asset of Rs. 
4,131.18 lakhs (P.Y.- Rs.3,833.22 lakhs) has been recognised till date in the accounts in compliance with IND AS 12 on" Income 
Taxes"

Contingent Liability disclosed above represents possible obligations where the possibility of cash outflow to settle the obligation 
is remote .

The company has given assets under non-cancellable operating lease . The total lease rent received on the same is Rs. 0.40 Lakhs- 
[ P.Y - Rs 0.40 Lakhs ]

The minimum future lease rentals receivable in respect of non-cancellable lease as at 31-March-25 are as under:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital account & not provided Rs. Nil (P.Y. Rs.Nil/-).



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'25
Rs. In Lakhs

Defined benefit plan  
34.1  Defined benefit plan  (Gratuity)

i

Particulars

A Components of Employer Expenses
1 Current Service Cost 96.80            118.59          
2 Past service Cost -                -                
3 Loss/(Gain) on settlement -                -                
4 Net interest income/(cost) on the net defined benefit liability 

(Asset)
11.31            13.11            

5 Total Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 108.11          131.70          

B Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet as at 31st 
March 2025

1 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 650.36          636.96          
2 Fair value of plan assets 480.37          475.40          
3 Funded Status [Surplus/(deficit)] (169.99)        (161.56)         
4 Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet (169.99)        (161.56)        

C Change in Defined Benefit Obligation during the year ended 
31st March 2025

1 Present value of DBO at beginning of period    636.96          641.95          
2 Current Service Cost        96.80            118.59          
3 Interest Cost        44.59            46.22            
4 Re-measurement (or actuarial)(gain)/loss arising from -                -                

-Change in demographic assumptions -                -                
-Change in financial assumptions (53.25)          (138.02)         
-Experience variation (i.e Actual experience vs assumptions) 0.76              (7.51)             

5 Past Service cost -                -                
6 Benefits Paid   (75.49)          (24.26)           
7 Acquisition adjustment -                
8 Effect of business combinations or disposals -                
7 Present value of DBO at the end of period   650.37          636.97          

D Change in Fair Value of Assets
1 Fair value of Planned assets at beginning of period 475.41          459.90          
2 Investment income 33.28            33.11            
3 Employer's contribution 51.03            5.38              
4 Benefits paid (75.49)          (24.26)           
5 Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net 

interest expense
(3.85)             1.28              

-                
6 Acquistion adjustment
7 Fair value of Plan assets at end of the period 480.38          475.41          

E Other Comprehensive Income
1 Actuarial (gains)/Losees

-Changes in demographic assumptions -                -                
-Changes in financial assumptions (53.25)          (138.02)         
-Experience variance (i.e Actual experience vs assumptions) 0.76              (7.51)             

2 Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net 
interest expense

3.85              (1.28)             

3 Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 
comprehensive income 

(48.64)          (146.82)         

Gratuity Funded Gratuity Funded

Gratuity: The Company has a defined Gratuity Plan for its employees. Every employee who has completed five years or more
of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Scheme is
funded with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024



ii The Major categories of plan assets as a % of total plan assets

Fund managed by insurer 100% 100%

iii Assumptions

Financial assumptions
Discount rate % 6.75% 7.00%
Rate of increase in salaries 6% p.a 7% p.a
Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate (% of IALM 2012-14) 100% 100%
Normal retirement age 58 years 58 years
Attrition rates, based on age(% p.a) for all ages 2% p.a 2% p.a

iv Sensitivity analysis

Revenue from operation

Defined benefit obligation base 650.36          636.96          

Particulars Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
a Discount rate (-/ +1%) 722.85             589.19          710.25             575.29          

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 11.15% -9.41% 11.51% -9.68%
b Salary growth rate (-/ +1%) 587.84             722.76          575.09             709.12          

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -9.61% 11.13% -9.71% 11.33%
c Attrition rate (-/ +50%) 647.17             652.98          638.22             635.72          

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -0.49% 0.40% 0.20% -0.20%
d Mortality rate (-/ +10%) 649.71             651.00          636.91             637.01          

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -0.10% 0.10% -0.01% 0.01%

v Effect of plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows
a) Funding arrangements and funding policy

b)
Particulars

The Company's best estimate of Contribution during the next
year

272.52          267.99          

c) Maturity profile of Defined benefit obligation
Particulars

Weighted average duration ( based on discounted cash flows) 11 years 12 years

Expected cash flows over the next years (valed on undiscounted 
basis)
1 year 62.90            57.87            
2 to 5 years 175.95          175.06          
6 to 10 years 235.60          206.43          
More than 10 years 1,081.72       1,188.32       

Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated .

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate expected salary
increase and mortality . The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the
assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period , while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of
sensitivity analysis is given below:-

Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

The company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees . Every year , the
insurance company carries out a funding valuation based on the latest emplyee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in
the assets arising as a reult of such valuation is funded by the company

Expected contibution during the next annual reporting period
Year ended 

31st March 2025
Year ended 

31st March 2024

Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

 Year ended 31st March 2025  Year ended 31st March 2024



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'25

Defined benefit plan  
34.2 Defined benefit plan  -Leave

Particulars

A Components of Employer Expenses
1 Current Service Cost 50.45          64.38                      
2 Past service Cost -               -                          
3 Loss/(Gain) on settlement -               -                          
4 Net interest income/(cost) on the net defined benefit liability 

(Asset)
10.47          9.37                        

5 change in demographic assumptions
6 Actuarial (gains)/ Losses due to Change in financial assumption (17.65)         (47.56)                    

7 Actuarial (gains)/ Losses due to Change in experience variance 20.11          36.08                      

8 Total Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 63.38          62.27                      

B Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet as at 31st 
March 2025

1 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 173.53        149.51                   
2 Fair value of plan assets -               -                          
3 Funded Status [Surplus/(deficit)] (173.53)       (149.51)                  
4 Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet (173.53)       (149.51)                  

C Change in Defined Benefit Obligation during the year ended 
31st March 2025

1 Present value of DBO at beginning of period    149.51        130.07                   
2 Current Service Cost        50.45          64.38                      
3 Interest Cost        10.47          9.36                        
4 Re-measurement (or actuarial)(gain)/loss arising from -               -                          

-Change in demographic assumptions -               -                          
-Change in financial assumptions (17.65)         (47.56)                    
-Experience variation (i.e Actual experioence vs assumptions) 20.11          36.08                      

5 Past Service cost -               -                          
6 Benefits Paid   (39.35)         (42.82)                    
7 Acquisition adjustment -               
8 Effect of business combinations or disposals -               
7 Present value of DBO at the end of period   173.54        149.51                   

D Change in Fair Value of Assets
1 Fair value of Planned assets at beginning of period -               -                          
2 Investment income -               -                          
3 Employer's contribution 39.35          42.82                      
4 Benefits paid (39.35)         (42.82)                    
5 Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net 

interest expense
-               -                          

6 Acquistion adjustment
7 Fair value of Plan assets at end of the period -               -                          

Unfunded Unfunded

Year ended
 31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Leave encashment Leave encashment



ii The Major categories of plan assets as a % of total plan assets

Fund managed by insurer NA NA

iii Assumptions

Financial assumptions
Discount rate % 6.75% 7.00%
Rate of increase in salaries 6% p.a. 7% p.a.
Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate (% of IALM 2012-14) 100% 100%
Normal retirement age 58 years 58 years
Attrition rates, based on age(% p.a) for all ages 2% p.a 2% p.a

iv Sensitivity analysis

Revenue from operation

Defined benefit obligation base 173.53 149.51

Particulars Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
a Discount rate (-/ +1%) 195.91             155.02        169.42       133.08                   

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 12.89% -10.67% 13.32% -10.99%
b Salary growth rate (-/ +1%) 153.71             197.17        132.01       170.41                   

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -11.42% 13.62% -11.70% 13.98%
c Attrition rate (-/ +50%) 171.78             175.05        149.00       149.95                   

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -1.01% 0.87% -0.34% 0.29%
d Mortality rate (-/ +10%) 173.33             173.73        149.45       149.57                   

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -0.12% 0.11% -0.04% 0.04%

v Effect of plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows
a) Maturity profile of Defined benefit obligation

Particulars

Weighted average duration ( based on discounted cash flows) 12 Years 12 Years

Expected cash flows over the next years (valued on 
undiscounted basis)
1 year 13.47           9.71                        
2 to 5 years 36.98           33.22                      
6 to 10 years 57.33           44.25                      
More than 10 years 368.99        355.10                   

Year ended
 31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated .

Year ended
 31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Year ended
 31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Year ended
 31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Year ended
 31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate expected salary
increase and mortality . The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonablepossible changes of the
assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period , while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of
sensitivity analysis is given below:-

Year ended
 31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024
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35 Fair Value Measurement

a)  Financial Instruments by category Rs. in Lakhs

Amortised Cost FVTOCI At Cost Amortised Cost FVTOCI At Cost
Financial Assets
Investment in Equity shares (Quoted) -                              58.36               -                     -                          43.29               -                     
Investment in Equity shares (Unquoted) -                              61.06               -                     -                          165.10             -                     
Investment in Equity shares (Unquoted) -                              -                     -                          -                     
Investment in Preference Shares (Unquoted) -                              73.06               -                     -                          67.13               -                     
Investment in Debentures (Unquoted) -                              400.30            -                     -                          425.00             -                     
Trade Receivables 6,315.72                  -                    -                     7,346.31                -                    -                     
Loans and Advances 44,770.96                -                    -                     53,147.35             -                    -                     
Other Financial Assets 2,031.57                  -                    -                     1,408.60                -                    -                     
Cash and Cash Equivalents 769.32                      -                    -                      714.99                   -                    -                     
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings(including interest accrued) 63,285.86                -                    -                     69,283.34             -                    -                     
Trade Payables 4,923.32                  -                    -                     5,575.65                -                    -                     
Lease Liabilities 6,509.62                  -                    -                     5,728.78                -                    -                     
Other Financial Liabilities 1,886.98                  -                    -                     1,011.20                -                    -                     

b) Fair Value Hierarchy

Particulars Fair Value 
Hierarchy

 As at  As at 

Financial Assets 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Investment in Equity Share(Quoted) Level 1 58.36                43.29                 
Investment in Equity Share(Unquoted) Level 2 61.06                165.10               

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities. 

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

(c)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost :

Carying Value Fair Value Carying Value Fair Value
Financial Assets
Investment in Preference Shares (Unquoted) -                              -                    -                      -                          
Investment in Debentures (Unquoted) -                              -                    -                      -                          
Security Deposit 1,520.08                  1,520.08         1,396.66           1,396.66                
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings(including interest accrued) 63,285.86                63,285.86      69,283.34         69,283.34             

31 March 2024

The fair value of financial assets & liabilities is classified in various fair value hierarchy based on following three levels:-

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted price included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
market approach and valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. 

Particulars
31 March 2025

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidated sale.

Based on the evaluation of Trade Receivables, allowances are considered to account for the expected losses of these receivables. As at
end of each reporting year, the carrying amount of such receivables , net of allowances (if any) , are not materially different from their
calculated Fair values.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

When the fair value of unquoted instruments cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, the group carries such instruments at cost
less impairment, if applicable.

Particulars
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

The Company uses Discounted Cash Flow Valuation Technique which involves determination of present value of expected receipt 
discounted using appropriate discounting rate.

The Management has assessed that the Fair Value of other financial assets and liabilities (fixed deposits, short term loans and advances 
and other current liabilities) approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short term nature of these instruments. Fair value 
of non-current financial instruments (other than above) approximates to their carrying value which is based on effective interest rate.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
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36 Financial risk management

(A) Credit risk

(B) Liquidity risk

Year ended 31.3.2025
Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 8,928.65                     53,500.71          -                                 62,429.36   
Interest on borrowings 856.50                         -                       -                                 856.50         
Trade Payables 4,923.32                     -                       -                                 4,923.32      
Employee Benefits Payable 840.22                         -                       -                                 840.22         
Other Liabilities 86.17                           -                       -                                 86.17            
Total 15,634.86                  53,500.71         -                                  69,135.57  

Year ended 31.3.2024
Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 11,065.90                   57,573.36          -                                 68,639.26   
Interest on borrowings 644.08                         -                       -                                 644.08         
Trade Payables 5,575.66                     -                       -                                 5,575.66      
Employee Benefits Payable 831.79                         -                       -                                 831.79         
Other Liabilities 114.62                         -                       -                                 114.62         
Total 18,232.05                  57,573.36         -                                  75,805.41  

The company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse
effects on the financial performance of the company, the company has risk management policies as described
below :-

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the company fails to honour its financial obligations in accordance with terms
of contract. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when
due and to close out market positions. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company’s liquidity position
and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the company’s liquidity
management policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet
these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and
maintaining debt financing plans.

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss arising from default / failure by the counterparty to meet financial
obligations as per the terms of contract. The company is exposed to credit risk for receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, financial guarantees. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material
concentration of credit risks. Credit risk on receivables is minimum since sales through different mode are made
after judging credit worthiness of the customers or advance payment . The history of defaults has been minimal
and outstanding receivables are regularly monitored. For credit risk on the loans to parties, the company is not
expecting any material risk on account of non-performance by any of the parties.The company creates
allowances for all unsecured receivables and advances based on lifetime expected credit loss. The company has
written off the Expected credit loss amounting to Rs. Nil (PY: Rs.Nil )in current year.

The Company does not have any derivative financial liability.The following are the remaining contractual
maturities of non derivative financial liabilities at the reporting period:



( C) Market risk

There is no transaction which will result in foreign currency exposure during the year .

Rs in lakhs

Particulars
Increase/ decrease 

in Basis points
Effect on Profit 

before tax

31.03.2025 +0.50 (316.43)              
-0.50 316.43                

31.03.2024 +0.50 (346.42)              
-0.50 346.42                

(iii) Price risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

Foreign Currency paid for the year w.r.t imports amounts to Rs.Nil (PY:Rs. 121.78 Lakhs), and w.r.t travelling
amounts to Rs. NIL (PY: Rs.2.82 Lakhs ).

The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from short term and long-term borrowings with variable rates,
which expose the company to cash flow interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible changes in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables remaining constant, the company's profit
before tax  is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

The company’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held - both quoted and unquoted
and classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through OCI or at fair value through profit or loss. The
company is not expecting high risk exposure from its investment in securities.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'25

39 Since the company operates only in one segment i.e. retailing and also in one country i.e. India, hence information on segment reporting with respect to operating
and geographical segment is not provided .

40

41

42

43 Advance to Employees Provident Fund Trust

44

45

46 Disclosure in relation to undisclosed income
The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the current

47 Details of Benami Property held

48 Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC).

49 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency 

50 Disclosure for no wilful default

51 Rounding-Off requirements

52

In terms of our attached report of even date SD/-
For Agrawal Tondon & Co. Sujoy Chattaraj
Chartered Accountants Director
FRN:-329088E DIN - 08818352

SD/-
Mamta Jain
Partner 
Membership No. 061299

Dated : 29th May 2025
Place : Kolkata

The Company is filing monthly statement of Inventories, Trade payables and Trade receivables to banks for working capital loan which have no material 
discrepancies.

Financing disclosure

Immovable Property
All the title deeds of the immovable property disclosed in Note No.2 of the financial statements (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company.

Reconciliation and reasons of material discrepancies, in monthly statements submitted to bank and books of accounts.

A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or other kind of funds) to or in any 
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

B) The Company has not received any funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) from any person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.  

The Company has decided to dissolve the "Frank Ross Employees Provident Fund Trust" & transfer the fund into EPFO. Therfore, the said advance has been given 
to fund the trust till all investments are redeemed.

Relationship with Struck off Companies 
The Company do not have any transactions with company’s struck off during the current and previous financial year.

Compliance with number of layers of companies.
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) 
Rules, 2017.

and previous financial year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 
1961).

The Company does not have any Benami property. Further, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period as at March 31, 2025.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Gautam Jatia
Managing Director

DIN - 00604926

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current and previous financial year.

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Rs. In lakhs, which is also the Company’s functional currency. All values are 
rounded off to the nearest Rs. In lakhs up to two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

SD/-

























Rs In Lakhs
As at As at

31st March 2025  31st March 2024 

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2.1 5,144.90               5,167.27               
b) Capital work-in-progress 2.1 -                        26.42                    
c) Other Intangible Assets 2.2 410.36                  275.45                  
d) Right of Use Assets 2.3 5,864.57               5,256.23               
e) Intangible Assets under Development 2.2 173.86                  179.11                  
f) Goodwill on Consolidation 36.23                    36.23                    

g) Financial assets
(i) Investments 3 552.97                  700.51                  
(ii) Other Financial Assets 6 2,031.57               1,408.60               

h) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 4,131.18               3,833.22               
i) Other non-current assets 8 327.54                  315.92                  

18,673.18             17,198.96             

CURRENT ASSETS
a) Inventories 9 11,671.11             10,021.14             
b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 3 39.81                    -                        
(ii) Trade receivable 5 6,315.72               7,346.31               
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 771.92                  717.58                  
(iv) Loans 4 44,770.96             53,147.35             

c) Other current assets 11 1,076.31               1,975.80               
64,645.83             73,208.18             

TOTAL ASSETS 83,319.01             90,407.14             

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a) Equity Share Capital 12 408.27                  408.27                  
b) Other Equity 13 6,654.35               7,882.81               

7,062.62               8,291.08               
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14 3,479.25               12,845.07             
(i)(a) Lease Liabilities 14 4,949.57               4,853.07               
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 15 104.10                  64.79                    

8,532.92               17,762.93             

CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14 58,950.12             55,794.19             
(i)(a) Lease Liabilities 14 1,560.05               875.71                  
(ii) Trade payables 17

(a) Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

689.14                  571.44                  

(b)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

4,234.18                               5,004.21 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 18 1,782.88               1,590.49               
b) Other current liabilities 19 163.46                  205.90                  
c) Provisions 16 343.64                  311.19                  

67,723.47             64,353.13             

TOTAL EQUITY AND  LIABILITIES 83,319.01             90,407.14             

Material accounting polices 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 1 to 52
In terms of our attached report of even date

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN:-329088E SD/- SD/-

Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj

Managing Director Director

DIN - 00604926 DIN - 08818352

SD/-

Mamta Jain

Partner 

Membership No. 061299

Dated : 29th May 2025

Place : Kolkata

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Emami Frank Ross Ltd
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

Particulars Notes

Total Non Current Liabilities

Total Non Current Assets

Total Current Liabilities

Total Current Assets

Total Equity



Rs. In Lakhs

Notes
Year ended

31st March 2025
Year ended

31st March 2024

I Revenue from Operations 20 60,325.76                  60,806.18                     

II Other Income 21 5,803.83                    6,277.79                       

III Total Income (I+II) 66,129.59                  67,083.97                     

IV Expenses :

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 49,775.32                  50,191.83                     

Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 22 (1,649.97)                  (1,995.31)                      

Employee Benefits Expense 23 6,795.39                    7,033.58                       

Finance Costs 24 6,865.50                    7,098.09                       

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2 2,650.22                    2,099.44                       

Other Expenses 25 3,160.45                    3,322.17                       

Total Expenses  (IV) 67,596.91                  67,749.80                     

V Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax (III-IV) (1,467.32)                  (665.83)                         

VI Tax Expense :

Deferred Tax 7 (299.13)                     (318.86)                         

VII  Profit / (Loss) for the year (V-VI) (1,168.19)                  (346.97)                         

VIII Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss

i Fair value changes in Equity instrument (107.73)                     7.23                               

ii Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 48.64                         146.82                           

iii Income Tax relating to above (1.17)                         (46.56)                           

Other Comprehensive income net of tax (60.26)                       107.49                           

IX Total Comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) (1,228.45)                  (239.48)                         

Earnings per equity share

i Basic (Face value Rs. 10/- each) (28.61)                       (8.50)                             

ii Diluted  (Face value Rs. 10/- each) (28.61)                       (8.50)                             

Material accounting polices 1

1 to 52

In terms of our attached report of even date

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN:-329088E SD/- SD/-

Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj

SD/- Managing Director Director

Mamta Jain DIN - 00604926 DIN - 08818352

Partner 

Membership No. 061299

Dated : 29th May 2025

Place : Kolkata

PARTICULARS

Emami Frank Ross Ltd
Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss 

For the year ended 31st March 2025

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

The accompanying notes are an integral part of
 these financial statements



Rs In Lakhs

A Equity Share Capital

1 Current reporting period (2024-25)

Balance at the beginning 
of the current reporting period

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due to 
prior period errors

Restated balance at 
the beginning of 

the current 
reporting period

Changes in equity 
share capital 

during the current 
year

Balance at the 
end of the current 
reporting period

                                                                              408.27                                 -                                  -                                  -                       408.27 

2 Previous reporting period (2023-24)

Balance at the beginning 
of the current reporting period

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due to 
prior period errors

Restated balance at 
the beginning of 

the current 
reporting period

Changes in equity 
share capital 

during the current 
year

Balance at the 
end of the current 
reporting period

                                                                              408.27                                 -                                  -                                  -                       408.27 

Other Equity

Balance as on 01.04.2023 (9,003.86)                   2,124.67                    14,800.00                  140.69                   60.81                           8,122.31      

Fair value changes in Equity instrument 7.23                       7.23             

Tax Effect on above (0.75)                      (0.75)            
Equity Component of Optionally
 Convertible Debenture (OCD)

-               

Remeasurement of Defined benefit obligation 146.82                         146.82         

Tax Effect on above (45.81)                          (45.81)          

Profit/(loss) for the year (346.99)                      (346.99)        

Balance at 31.03.2024 (9,350.85)                   2,124.67                    14,800.00                  147.17                   161.82                         7,882.81      

Balance as on 01.04.2024 (9,350.85)                   2,124.67                    14,800.00                  147.17                   161.82                         7,882.81      

Fair value changes in Equity instrument (107.73)                  (107.73)        

Tax Effect on above 14.00                     14.00           
Equity Component of Optionally
Convertible Debenture (OCD) -               

Remeasurement of Defined benefit obligation 48.64                           48.64           

Tax Effect on above (15.18)                          (15.18)          

Profit/(loss) for the year (1,168.19)                   (1,168.19)     

Balance at 31.03.2025 (10,519.04)                 2,124.67                    14,800.00                  53.44                     195.28                         6,654.35      

Material accounting polices 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of 
these financial statements

1 to 52

In terms of our attached report of even date
For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:-329088E SD/-

Gautam Jatia
Managing Director

DIN - 00604926

SD/-
Mamta Jain
Partner 
Membership No. 061299

Dated : 29th May 2025
Place : Kolkata

Emami Frank Ross Ltd
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2025

Particulars

Other Comprehensive Income

 Total Other 
Equity  General 

Reserve 

Sujoy Chattaraj
Director

DIN - 08818352

 Equity Component 
of Optionally 
Convertible 
Debenture

(OCD) 

SD/-

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Equity 
Instruments 
through OCI 

 Remeasurement of 
Defined Benefit 

Plans 

Reserves & Surplus



Rs in Lakhs
A Cash flow from operating activities 2024-25 2023-24

Net Profit before tax (1,467.32)                (665.83)                        
Adjustments for :-
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,650.22                 2,099.44                      
Dividend (0.80)                       (0.80)                            
Finance costs 6,865.50                 7,098.09                      
Interest income (5,608.57)                (6,212.85)                     
Provision for Doubtful Debts & Advances Written Back -                          -                               
Loss on sale/disposal of Property, Plant & equipment (net) 4.91                        10.07                           
Lease Payments (2,118.51)                (1,729.10)                     
Non Cash items (187.46)                   (39.26)                          

137.97                    559.76                         

Adjustments for working capital changes
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables and Other Liabilities (668.27)                   938.34                         
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (1,649.96)                (1,995.31)                     
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 1,030.59                 (1,349.40)                     
(Increase)/Decrease financial & non financial assets 835.33                    (1,423.78)                     
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 32.87                      (1.46)                            

(419.44)                   (3,831.61)                     
Cash generated from opreation (281.47)                   (3,271.85)                     
Less:- Direct Taxes paid/(refund received)-Net (71.53)                     (105.85)                        

Net Cash flow from opearting activities (353.00)                   (3,377.70)                     

B Cash flow from Investing activities
Proceeds from Sale of Property,Plant & Equipment 10.53                      6.66                             
Interest received 6,980.75                 1,836.04                      
Dividend 0.80                        0.80                             
Purchase of Property,Plant & Equipment (1,364.33)                (2,274.02)                     
Loan refunded/(given) 6,914.39                 (2,345.00)                     
Fixed deposit made (500.00)                   (0.75)                            

Net cash flow from ( used ) investing activities 12,042.14               (2,776.27)                     

C Cash flow from Financing activities
Repayment of Borrowings (Net) (8,110.70)                (20,220.61)                   
Redemption of Non Convertible Debentures (3,400.00)                (1,700.00)                     
Proceeds from borrowings 4,356.13                 33,405.00                    
Interest Paid Including Borrowing costs (6,205.75)                (6,889.37)                     
Principal repayment of lease liability 780.84                    851.80                         
Cash credit taken/(repaid) (net) 944.68                    653.17                         

Net cash flow from (used) financing activities (11,634.80)              6,099.99                      

                       54.34                           (53.98)
Add:- Cash & Cash Equivalents -Opening balance 717.58                    771.56                         
Cash & cash equivalents -Closing balance 771.92                     717.58                          

Notes:-

(a)

(b) As at As at 
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Cash & cash equivalents includes:-
Cash in hand 273.55                    156.09                         
-Current account 494.74                    558.30                         
Fixed Deposits with Banks [including interest accrued] 3.63                        3.19                             

Cash & Cash Equivalents in Cash Flow Statement 771.92                    717.58                         

Material accounting polices 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 1 to 52

In terms of our attached report of even date

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN:-329088E SD/- SD/-

Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj

SD/- Managing Director Director

Mamta Jain DIN - 00604926 DIN - 08818352

Partner 

Membership No. 061299

Dated : 29th May 2025

Place : Kolkata

Net increase /(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C)

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS-7)-Statement of Cash Flow

Particulars

Emami Frank Ross Ltd
Consolidated Cash Flow statement
For the year ended 31st March 2025

For & on behalf of Board of Directors



1 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 25

Corporate Information

Emami Frank Ross Limited, the Group,is primarily engaged in pharmacy business in the name
of "Frank Ross Pharmacy" & leisure business of books, media, toys & Stationery in the name of
"Starmark". The Group is domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Group is located at Kolkata.

1 Material Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation and compliance with Ind AS

(i) This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. 

a) Basis of Preparation

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ("Act") read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 and the relevant amendment rules
issued thereafter.These IndAS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis using historical cost convention, except for the following:

1 Derivative Financial Instruments at FVTPL
2 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy

regarding financial Instruments)
3 Defined Benefit Plans which have been measured at Actuarial Valuation as required by

relevant Ind AS. 

b) Functional and presentation currency

These IndAS Financial Statements are prepared in Indian Rupee which is the Group’s
functional and presentation currency. All figures are rounded off to nearest lakhs.

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies

a) Property, Plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation (other than
Freehold Land) and accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of Property, Plant &
Equipment comprises of its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable
taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use. Interest and other financial charges on loans borrowed specifically for
acquisition of capital assets are capitalised till the start of commercial production.
Depreciation is provided on the written down value method .The Group has used written
down value method based on the useful life with the requirements of Part C of Schedule II of
the Companies Act, 2013.  

Leasehold property  is amortised during the period of lease.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date is classified as Capital Advances under other Non-Current Assets and the
cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital Work in Progress’.
The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the Financial Statements
upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the
Statement of Profit & Loss. The method of depreciation, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each financial year end.

When significant parts of property, plant & equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant
& equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing
asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing
property plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure
and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period
during which such expenses are incurred.



Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference
between the estimated / actual disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation and useful lives
Depreciation is provided on the written down value method. The Group has used written
down value method based on the useful life with the requirements of Part C of Schedule II of
the Companies Act, 2013.  

b) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

The Group’s intangible assets constitutes
i) Computer software which has finite useful economic lives and these are amortised on a

straight line basis, over their useful life of 3 years. 
ii) Tenancy right is depreciated over a period of 10 years from the date it is available for use.

iii) Online Application Software is written off  in 6 years on Straight Line basis over the estimated 
useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period.

c) Impairment of property plant and equipment and intangible assets
The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine if there
is any indication of impairment based on external or internal factors. An impairment loss is
recognisedwherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount which
represents thegreater of the net selling price of assets and their ‘value in use’. The estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rates and risks
specific to the asset.

d) Revenue Recognition

The Group derives revenue on  retail trade of Pharmaceutical products and Leisure products.
Revenue is recognised on satisfaction of performance obligation at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for of
Pharmaceutical products and Leisure products.

Contract assets and Contract Liability
Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which we referred as unbilled
revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (which we
refer as unearned revenue).

Revenue from retail sales is measured at the fair value of the consideration received. Revenue
is reduced  for discounts and rebates and Goods and Service tax.

Revenue is recognised on the delivery of the merchandise to the customer ,when the property
in goods and control are transferred for a price and no effective ownership control is retained.

Facility management fees are recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract. Revenue
from stores displays and sponsorships are recognised based on the periods for which the
products or the sponsors advertisement are promoted.
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of a financial
liability or a financial asset to their gross carrying amount.
Interest and Dividend income are included under the head “other income” in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.Dividend is recognised when the Group’s right to receive dividend is 
established.

e) Foreign currency transactions
Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign
currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion



Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when
such value was determined.

Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting monetary
items of Group at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the
year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or expenses in
the year in which they arise.

f) Inventories

Inventories are valued as lower of cost and realizable value. Cost is determined on First in First
Out basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

g) Employee benefits
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are
classified as short‐term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus
and ex‐gratia. The undiscounted amount of short‐term employee benefits to be paid in
exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense as the related service is
rendered by employees.

h) Post-employment benefits
The Group operates the following post‐employment schemes:

i) Gratuity is funded with Life insurance corporation of India . Gratuity liability is defined benefit
obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit
method done at the end of each financial year in accordance with the provision of Ind AS 19 -
Employee Benefits. The Group recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its
balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net
defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. The actual return of the portfolio of plan
assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation is recognized in other comprehensive income. The effect of any
plan amendments are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

The long-term and short term classification of gratuity is based on the actuarial valuations.

ii) Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined benefit contribution scheme and
the Group recognizes the contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure
when an employee renders the related services. The Group has no obligations other than the
contribution payable to the respective funds already paid.

 
iii) Leave encashment

The Group provides for the encashment of leave with pay subject to certain rules. The
employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits, for future encashment /
availment. The liability is provided based on the number of days of unutilized leave at each
Balance Sheet date on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and
losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

iv) Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised through Other
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Group recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

i)  Leases



The Group has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and has
accordingly not restated the comparative information. The Group at the inception of a
contract, assesses whether a contract, is or contains a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Ind AS 116 introduces a single balance sheet lease accounting
model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use of assets and lease liabilities for short term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Group
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line
basis over the lease term . Lessor accounting remains similar to the accounting under the
previous standard i.e. lessor continues to classify leases as finance or operating lease. For
contracts entered into before 1st April 2019, the determination of whether an arrangement is,
or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the
lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or
assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.



As a lessee
The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct cost incurred and an estimate of cost to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated over the useful
life of the asset. On the balance sheet date, the right-of-use of asset is included in property,
plant and equipment and lease liabilities have been included in the borrowings and other
financial liabilities.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as
appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases, where the Group is a lessor, is recognised in income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with 
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflation.

j) Taxes
Current income tax
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with Indian Income Tax Act. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax returns vis a vis position taken in books of account which are subject to interpretation
and creates provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available in future supported by convincing evidence against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carried forward unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Such deferred tax items are
recognized, in correlation to the underlying transaction either, in OCI or directly in equity. 



k) Provisions
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of
which a reliable estimate can be made. 

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

l) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. The Group
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

m) Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before OCI for the year
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

n) Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 “Statement of Cash
Flows”, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated based on
the available information.

o) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial
recognition of financial asset or financial liability.
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised 
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if they are held within a business
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.



Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income(FVTOCI). There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit & Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the
Group may transfer the cumulative gain/loss within Other Equity.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.  Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments
The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the
Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive the dividend is
established.

Preference Shares
The Group measures all investments in Preference shares at amortised cost.Subsequently
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income on EIR basis. 

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments, the Group recognizes impairment loss
allowance on trade receivables based on historically observed default rates. Impairment loss
allowance recognized during the year is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Offsetting of financial instruments
The Group offsets a financial asset and a financial liability when it currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

p) Segment Reporting
Identification of Segments

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the
nature of products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The analysis of
geographical segments is based on the areas in which the customers of the Group are
located. Since the Group operates only in India there is no geographical segment. 

Segment accounting policies
The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies
adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Group as a whole.

q) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and Balances with Bank.



r) Borrowing Costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings 
are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of 
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the 
period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as 
current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
the borrowing costs.

2 Critical estimates and judgements
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimating uncertainty as at the balance sheet date that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
occur.

A. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group has adopted the useful lives as specified in Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 for
Property, Plant & Equipment . The Group reviews the estimated useful lives at the end of each
reporting period. Such useful lives depend upon various factors such as usage, maintenance
practices etc. and can involve estimation uncertainty. Changes in the expected level of
usage and technological developments could impact the economic useful lives and the
residual values of these assets, therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised. 

B Impairment of property, plant and equipment

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs
to sell calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm's length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing the
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model and requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

C. Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

Significant estimates are used in fair valuation of assets.

D. Employee Defined Benefit Plans

The determination of Group's liability towards defined benefit obligations to employees is
made through independent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be
recognized in the income statement and in the other comprehensive income. Such valuation
depend upon assumptions determined after taking into account inflation, promotion and
other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market.

E. Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions and contingencies are based on management’s best estimate of the liabilities
based on the facts known at the balance sheet date.



F. Estimation of current tax expenses and payable

Taxes recognized in the financial statements reflect management’s best estimate of the
outcome based on the facts known at the balance sheet date. These facts include but are
not limited to interpretation of tax laws of various jurisdictions where the group operates. Any
difference between the estimates and final tax assessments will impact the income tax as well
the resulting assets and liabilities.

G. Impairment of financial assets (including trade receivable)
Allowance for doubtful receivables represent the estimate of losses that could arise due to
inability of the Customer to make payments when due. These estimates are based on the
customer ageing, customer category, specific credit circumstances and the historical
experience of the group as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. 

H Recent pronouncements Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”)
Notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, 
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable 
to the Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'25

3 Non Current Investments Rs.In Lakhs

3.1

A [Investments carried at Cost ]
1 Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)
a Medico Association  #

12 Shares** 0.42                   0.42         
Less:- Provision for diminution in value of investment (0.42)                  -                     (0.42)       -                  

b All India Origin Chemists & Distributors Limited #
2000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 0.20                   0.20         

Less:- Provision for diminution in value of investment (0.20)                  -                     (0.20)       -                  

c Shoppers City Maintenance Co. P Ltd #
19800 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each fully paid up 0.20                   0.20         

Less:- Provision for diminution in value of investment (0.20)                  -                     (0.20)       -                  

B [Investments carried at Fair Value through OCI ]

1 M. Bhattacharyya & Co. Private. Limited 61.06                 165.09            
222 Equity Shares of Rs. 500/- each fully paid up 

2 Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)
i Emami Limited 57.97                 42.94              

10000 Equity shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid up. 

ii Emami Realty  Limited 0.39                   0.35                
333 Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

119.42               208.38            

C Investment in Preference Shares (Unquoted)
[ Investments carried at Fair Value through OCI ]
Others

i M. Bhattacharyya & Co. Private Limited 33.25                 16.33              

35000 0% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of 
Rs.100/-each fully paid up
Redeemable at par at any time within the period of 20 years from 
date of issue @ Rs.500/- per share

ii PAN Emami Cosmed Limited

22750 8% Class B Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares
(OCRPS) of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 39.81                 50.80              

73.06                 67.13              

D Investment in Debentures (Unquoted)
[ Investments carried at Fair Value through OCI ]
Others

i M. Bhattacharyya & Co. Private Limited  -Note - 2 400.30               425.00            

425 Optionally Convertible Debentures of Rs 100000/- each fully paid up

Redeemable on or Before 120 months from the date of Issue

400.30               425.00            
592.78               700.51            

Aggregate value of Quoted Investment and market value thereof 58.36                 43.29              
Aggregate value of Unquoted Investment 534.42               657.22            
#Aggregate provision for dimunition in value of investments 0.82                   0.82                

** Formed under Bombay Non - Trading Corporations Act, 1959 not having Face value of Shares
** For credit risk and provision for loss allowance refer note no 36.

Note- 1
PAN Emami to Midkot shares

Note- 2

As atAs at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024Particulars

Midkot Investments Private Limited has been changed from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company w.e.f. 13th November, 2023. Further, the name of Midkot Investments Limited has 
been changed to PAN Emami Cosmed Limited w.e.f. 8th December, 2023.

425 nos. Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures @ 100,000/- each issued by M Bhattacharya & co Pvt Ltd. Date of allotment- 12-Jan-2022. The same is convertible into equity at the option of the 
issuer , or be redeemed any time within 120 months after date of allotment @ 2% premium. 

Total(A+B)

Total(C)

Grand Total (A+B+C+D)
Total(D)
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Rs.In Lakhs

4 Loans 

Considered Good-Unsecured

To others 44,770.96      53,147.35      

Total  Current 44,770.96      53,147.35    
Total Loans 44,770.96      53,147.35    

5 Trade receivables

Current
Considered good -Unsecured*
    :Related party 142.44        52.12         
     :Others 6,173.28     6,315.72        7,294.19    7,346.31        

Credit impaired 7.09               7.09             
Less:- Allowance for doubtful debts and advances (7.09)              (7.09)            

Total  Current 6,315.72        7,346.31      

*- For credit risk and provision for loss allowance refer note no 36

Trade Receivables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2025

Less than 6 
months

6 months-1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good 6,100.67      148.70             63.19         -                3.16              6,315.72    

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have 
significant increase in credit risk

-             

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired 7.09              7.09           

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good -             

(v) Disputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant 
increase in credit risk

-             

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired -             

(vii) Less : Allowances for credit impaired 7.09              7.09           

TOTAL 6,100.67     148.70           63.19        -               3.16            6,315.72    

Trade Receivables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2024

Less than 6 
months

6 months-1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good 7,101.78      73.90               167.47       0.00              3.16              7,346.31    

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have 
significant increase in credit risk

-             

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired 7.09              7.09           

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good -             

(v) Disputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant 
increase in credit risk

-             

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired -               -             

(vii) Less : Allowances for credit impaired 7.09              7.09           

TOTAL 7,101.78     73.90             167.47      0.00             3.16            7,346.31    

6 Other Financial Assets

Security Deposits
Security Deposits-Related Parties 153.13           144.84           
Security Deposits-Others 1,366.95        1,251.82        

Other Advances
Fixed Deposits pledged with Banks [including interest 
accrued]*

511.49           11.94             

Total 2,031.57        1,408.60      

*- Includes Lien marked towards Overdraft limit of Rs. 498.75 lakhs.

Total

TotalParticulars
Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments

Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

31st March 2025
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Rs In Lakhs
7 Movements in Deferred Taxes

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31-Mar-19

15.30                        29.30                                 138.65                 

4,124.46                   3,831.02                            1,438.29              

(4,109.16)                 (3,801.72)                          (1,299.64)            

(22.02)                      (31.50)                               (31.50)                 

(4,131.18)                 (3,833.22)                          (1,331.14)            
4131.18 3833.22

 Movement in Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) 
 Liabilities/Provisions that are 

deducted for tax purposes when 
paid 

 Defined Benefit 
Obligation 

 On Unabsorbed 
Losses 

 Depreciation 
differences 

 Financial Assets 
(FVOCI)-Equity Shares 

 Total 

As at 01 April, 2023
Charged/(Credited) -                      
 Recognised in Profit & Loss 30.28                                                       (46.14)                             (205.87)                           (97.14)                      -                                    (318.87)               
 Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income -                                                          45.81                              -                                  -                           0.75                                   46.56                   
Recognised in Other Equity -                                                          -                                  -                                  -                           -                                    -                      
As at 31st March, 2024 (0.77)                                                       (48.90)                             (3,026.17)                        (755.19)                    29.31                                 (3,801.72)            
Add:- MAT Credit Entitlement -                                                          -                                  -                                  -                           -                                    (31.50)                 

 Net Deferred Tax Liabilities /(Asset)-as at 31-Mar-2024 (0.77)                                                       (48.90)                             (3,026.17)                        (755.19)                    29.31                                 (3,833.22)            

As at 01 April, 2024
Charged/(Credited)
 Recognised in Profit & Loss (4.17)                                                       (5.05)                               (199.20)                           (100.19)                    -                                    (308.61)               
 Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income -                                                          15.17                              -                                  -                           (14.00)                               1.17                     
Recognised in Other Equity -                                                          -                                  -                                  -                           -                                    -                      

As at 31st March, 2025
(4.94)                                                       (38.78)                             (3,225.37)                        (855.38)                    15.31                                 (4,109.16)            

Add:- MAT Credit Entitlement -                                                          -                                  -                                  -                           -                                    (22.02)                 
 Net Deferred Tax Liabilities /(Asset)-as at 31-Mar-2025 (4.94)                                                       (38.78)                             (3,225.37)                        (855.38)                    15.31                                 (4,131.18)            

Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Asset) (Net)

Particulars
Deferred Tax Liability

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Asset) (Gross)

Add:- MAT Credit Entitlement



Rs. In Lakhs

Note7(ii) Effective tax reconciliation
Income Tax Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Current Tax -                   -                     
Deferred Tax (299.13)            (318.86)              
Total Income tax Expense recognised in the current year              (299.13)               (318.86)

The income tax expense can be reconciled
to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Profit before tax (1,467.32)          (665.83)              
Applicable tax rate 31.20% 31.20%

Computed Tax Expense              (457.80)               (207.74)

Add/(Deduct)                       -                          -   

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/(taxable)               886.19                 620.15 

in calculating taxable income
Tax efftect of income which are deductible              (706.12)               (592.59)

(Excess)/Short Provision for Earlier Years                       -                          -   

Tax effect of certain temporary differences measured at lower rates              (100.19)                 (97.13)

Others                 78.79                 (41.54)

Total Income Tax Expense/(Credit)              (299.13)               (318.86)
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Rs.In Lakhs

8 Other non-current assets

Capital Advances 11.98               46.93              

Other advances
Prepaid Expenses 8.61                 2.43                
Prepaid Lease Rentals 306.95             266.56            

Total 327.54             315.92            

9 Inventories-At lower of cost and Net realisable value

Total 11,671.11        10,021.14       

10 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with Banks
On Current Accounts 486.70             539.36            

Other Bank Balance
Fixed Deposits with Banks 
[including interest accrued]

3.63                 3.19                

Cheques in hand 8.04                 18.94              
Cash in hand 273.55             156.09            

Total 771.92             717.58            

11 Other current assets

Considered good ,Unsecured

Advance to Employees Provident Fund Trust* 79.00               799.00            
Advance to Directors 19.44               21.09              
Advance to Employees 90.78               80.28              
Insurance Claim Receivable 20.13               52.49              
Balances with Statutory Authorities 633.99             701.52            
Prepaid Expenses 181.72             223.80            
Advance against Expenses 51.25               97.62              

Total 1,076.31          1,975.80         

* :- (Refer Note No. 43)

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Stock- In-Trade 11,671.11        10,021.14       

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
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12 Equity Share Capital
Rs.In Lakhs

As at
 31st March, 2025

As at
 31st March, 2024

Authorised
58,00,000  Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 580.00                        580.00                                       

6,20,000 Non Cumulative Redeeemable Preference shares of Rs. 100/- each 620.00                        620.00                                       

1,200.00                     1,200.00                                 
Issued,Subscribed & Fully Paid up

40,82,707 Equity Shares Rs.10/- Each fully paid up 408.27                        408.27                                       

408.27                        408.27                                     

Reconciliation of Number of Shares

Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount

40,82,707                            408.27                        40,82,707                                 408.27                         
-                                          -                                -                                              -                                

40,82,707                            408.27                        40,82,707                              408.27                       

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions Attached to Shares

The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares as at the end of the reporting period is stated as below:-

Number of Shares Held % of Holding Number of Shares Held % of Holding

PAN Emami Cosmed Limited 6,93,747                              16.99                           6,93,747                                 16.99                          
Suraj Finvest Private Limited 15,35,137                            37.60                           15,35,137                              37.60                          
Diwakar Finvest Private Limited 14,02,678                            34.36                           15,02,678                              36.81                          

Note:

Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March'2025

Sl.No Promoter name
No.of Shares as on 

01.04.2024
Change during the 

year
No.of Shares as 
on 31.03.2025

% of Total shares
%Change during 

the year

1 PRITI  A SUREKA 1,04,135                                1,00,000                       2,04,135                                   5.00% 96.03%
2 JAYANT GOENKA 15,448                                    -                                 15,448                                       0.38% 0.00%
3 USHA AGARWAL 4,000                                      -                                 4,000                                         0.10% 0.00%
4 PRASHANT GOENKA 2,655                                      -                                 2,655                                         0.07% 0.00%
5 PAN EMAMI COSMED LIMITED - Note - 1 6,93,747                                -                                 6,93,747                                   16.99% 0.00%
6 SURAJ FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED 15,35,137                              -                                 15,35,137                                 37.60% 0.00%
7 DIWAKAR FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED 15,02,678                              (1,00,000)                     14,02,678                                 34.36% -6.65%

TOTAL 38,57,800                            -                                38,57,800                              94.49%

Sl.No Promoter name  No.of Shares as on 
01.04.2023 

 Change during the 
year 

 No.of Shares as on 
31.03.2024 

 % of Total shares 
 %Change during 

the year 
1 PRITI  A SUREKA 1,04,135                                -                                 1,04,135                                   2.55% 0.00%
2 JAYANT GOENKA 15,448                                    -                                 15,448                                       0.38% 0.00%
3 USHA AGARWAL 4,000                                      -                                 4,000                                         0.10% 0.00%
4 PRASHANT GOENKA 2,655                                      -                                 2,655                                         0.07% 0.00%
5 PAN EMAMI COSMED LIMITED - Note - 1 6,93,747                                -                                 6,93,747                                   16.99% 0.00%
6 SURAJ FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED 15,35,137                              -                                 15,35,137                                 37.60% 0.00%
7 DIWAKAR FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED 15,02,678                              -                                 15,02,678                                 36.81% 0.00%

TOTAL 38,57,800                            -                                38,57,800                              94.49%
Note:

1

As at 31st March 2024

Name of the shareholder

Balance at the Beginning

Holding Company has issued 20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each on preferential basis in the lieu of unsecured loan amounting to Rs.2 Crores received from Diwakar Finvest Private Limited & Suraj Finvest 
Private                   Limited respectively during the financial year 22-23.

Shares Issued during the year 

 As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

The Holding Company has only one class of Equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Holding company declares
and pays dividend in Indian Rupees . The dividend proposed , if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

In the event of liquidation of the holding company the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the holding company after distribution of all preferential amounts.
However, no such preferential  amounts exist currently.The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

As at 31st March' 2025

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Midkot Investments Private Limited has been changed from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company w.e.f. 13th November. 2023. Further, the name of Midkot Investments Limited has been changed to 
PAN Emami Cosmed Limited w.e.f. 8th December, 2023.

Equity Shares held by Promoters at the end of the current year

Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March'2024

Equity Shares held by Promoters at the end of the Previous year
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13 Other Equity

Rs.In Lakhs

General Reserve
As per Last Balance Sheet 2,124.67                 2,124.67                
Add: Transferred during the year -                         2,124.67                  -                         2,124.67                    

Retained Earnings
As per Last Balance Sheet (9,350.85)                (9,003.86)               
Add: Profit/Loss for the year (1,168.19)                (10,519.04)               (346.99)                  (9,350.85)                   

Other Comprehensive Income*
As per Last Balance Sheet 308.99                    201.50                   
Add: Movement in OCI during the year (60.27)                     248.72                     107.49                   308.99                       

Optionally Convertible Debentures-Unsecured (Note-13.1) 14,800.00               14,800.00                14,800.00              14,800.00                  

*:- Includes re-measurement gains/losses on defined benefit
plans and gain/loss on fair value of investments

Total 6,654.35                  7,882.81                 

13.1
Zero Coupon Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD)
The Holdiing company has restructure its finances and has issued 14800 zero coupon unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures @ Rs.1,00,000/- each on 
preferential basis amounting to Rs.148 crores in F Y 22-23 in pursuance of articles of association of company and as approved by board of directors and 
shareholders of the Holding company.

The OCDs shall be optionally convertible into the equity shares of the company and/ or redeeemable at any time at the option of the issuer within a period of 10 
years from the date of allotment. The OCD shall be redeemed within a period of 30 days after the expirey of 10 years i.e. at the end of tenure of the OCD if not 
converted into equity shares. If the debentures are redeemed, then the debentures shall be redeemed at a premium to ensure an internal rate of return of 10% 
p.a.

Particulars
As at

 31st March, 2025
As at

 31st March, 2025
As at

 31st March, 2024
As at

 31st March, 2024
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Rs. In Lakhs

14 Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings

Secured

From Banks # 7,000.27         15,110.97       
Less:- Current Maturities 6,527.30         472.97              7,665.90         7,445.07              

Non-Convertible Debentures ## 5,400.00         8,800.00         
Less:- Current Maturities 2,400.00         3,000.00          3,400.00         5,400.00              

-                     
Vehicle Loan 6.28                    -                        

-                      
Total-Borrowings-(i) 3,479.25          12,845.07         

(i)(a) Lease Liability :
Long Term Maturities of Lease Obligation 4,949.57          4,853.07              

Total-Lease Liability-(i)(a) 4,949.57          4,853.07              

Total-Non Current- A 8,428.82          17,698.14         

(i) Borrowings
Loans Repayable on Demand
Secured Loan from Banks
Cash Credit [ Note 14.1 ] 879.97             (64.71)             
Working Capital Demand Loan [ Note 14.1 ] 8,900.00         9,779.97          6,400.00         6,335.29              

Unsecured
Related Party 40,241.50       38,393.00           

Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings-Secured 8,927.30          11,065.90           
Term Loan from Banks # 6,527.30         7,665.90         
Non-Convertible Debentures ## 2,400.00         3,400.00         

Vehicle Loan 1.35                    -                        

Total-Borrowings-(i) 58,950.12       55,794.19         

(i)(a) Lease Liability :
Current Maturities of Lease Obligation 1,560.05          875.71                 

Total-Lease Liability-(i)(a) 1,560.05          875.71                

Total-Current-B 60,510.17       56,669.90         
Total Borrowings (A+B) 68,938.99       74,368.04         

  # Refer Note 28

14.1    

##Secured Rated,listed and unlisted redeemable  Non Convertible debenture (NCD)

15 Other Financial Liabilities

Interest due to MSME 11.96                 5.34                     
Deposit against Rent 70.11                 22.50                  
Deposit received from Franchise & Agent 22.03                 36.95                  

Total Non Current 104.10              64.79                  

The coupon related to NCDs will be linked to and be equivalent to average of 1year MCLR (ie. Marginal Cost of Funds Based 
Lending Rate) of 4 banks viz. ICICI Bank, HDFC Bank, SBI and Bank of Baroda plus applicable Spread and shall be reset on 
quarterly basis at the begining of each quarter ( i.e. on April 1, July 1, October 2, and January 1 of each year) As on date of 
execution of this Deed, the Coupon comprises of (i) the average 1-year MCLR as on April 1, 2024 of 8.96% p.a and (ii) spread of 
2.04% p.a.

 As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

The holding company has issued 980 listed secured Rated & 220 unlisted secured Rated redeemable & non convertible 
debentures of face value of Rs 10,00,000/- each on private placement basis aggregating to Rs 120 crores (98 crores +22 crores) 
during FY22-23 in pursuance of articles of association of company and as approved by board of directors of the holding 
company.

 As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Bank-1 -Cash Credit And Working Capital Demand Loan are secured  primarily by way of hypothecation on the entire Current 
Assets of the holding company existing and future comprising of Stock-in-trade, receivables , book debts and other current 
assets. These loans are further secured Collateraly by way of Hypothecation / mortgage on all  fixed assets (excluding vehicles) of 
the holding company, both present and future. The loan carries interest @ 9.5% p.a.
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16 Provisions

Provision for Employee Benefits*
For Gratuity 169.99        161.56                     
For Leave 173.53        343.52     149.51                     311.07                     
Other Provisions 0.12           0.12                          

Total 343.64     311.19                   
* :- (Refer Note No. - 34.1 & 34.2)

17 Trade payables

a
Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

689.14     571.44                     

b
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

4,234.18  5,004.21                 

Total 4,923.32  5,575.65                

Disclosure as required by Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006

 As at
31st March 2025 

 As at 
31st March 2024 

689.14                   571.44                     
11.96                      5.34                          

-                           -                           

-                           -                           

-                           -                           

-                           -                           

Note : Identification of micro and small enterprises is basis intimation received from vendors.

Trade Payables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2025

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

3 years
(i) MSME 672.08           15.94           0.03                           1.09                           689.14        
(ii) Others 3,126.40        925.60        112.16                      70.02                         4,234.18    
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others

TOTAL 3,798.48      941.54       112.19                     71.11                        4,923.32    

Trade Payables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2024

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

3 years
(i) MSME 570.71           0.12             0.11                           0.50                           571.44        
(ii) Others 2,750.59        2,004.69     153.68                      95.25                         5,004.21    
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others

TOTAL 3,321.30      2,004.81    153.79                     95.75                        5,575.65    

18 Other Financial Liabilities

Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings 856.49     644.08                     

Other Payables
Employee Expenses 840.22        831.79                     
Liabilities for Expenses 86.17           926.39     114.62                     946.41                     

Total 1,782.88  1,590.49                

19 Other Current Liabilities

Statutory Liabilities 146.23     197.44                     
Advance from Customers 17.23        8.46                          

Total 163.46     205.90                   

D. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid
E. Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such 
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises 

Particulars

A(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid
A(ii) Interest amount remaining unpaid
B. Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro,Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act,2006, along with the amount of the payment made to 
the supplier beyond the appointed day.

C. Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been 
paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest 
specified under the Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006

Outstanding for the following period from 
due date of payments

TotalParticulars

 As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

 As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

 As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

 As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

TotalParticulars

Outstanding for the following period from 
due date of payments
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Rs. In Lakhs

20  Revenue from Operations 

Sale of Products 59,536.87             60,346.49           

Sale of Services
Rental Income 199.88           199.88                  83.03             83.03                  

Other Operating Revenues
Income From Store Displays 557.67           372.14           
Facility Management Fees 31.34             589.01                  4.52               376.66                

Total 60,325.76             60,806.18           

21  Other Income 

Interest Income
Interest on Loan given 5,518.75               6,131.81             

Interest on Others
Interest income on Security Deposit at Amortised Cost 69.76             69.66             
Interest on Deposit 20.07             1.54               
Interest on Income Tax Refund -                89.83                    9.84               81.04                  

Dividend Income 0.80                      0.80                    

Insurance Claim 0.32                      19.57                  
Liabilities Written Back 187.46                  39.26                  
Miscellaneous Receipts 6.67                      5.31                    

Total 5,803.83               6,277.79             

22  Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 

(I) Opening Inventory 10,021.14             8,025.83             

(II) Closing Inventory 11,671.11             10,021.14           

(Increase)/Decrease (1,649.97)              (1,995.31)           

23  Employee Benefits Expense 

Salaries and Wages 6,144.88               6,332.75             
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 506.03                  516.24                
Staff Welfare Expense 144.48                  184.59                

Total 6,795.39               7,033.58             

 Year ended
31st March 2025 

 Year ended
31st March 2024 

 Year ended
31st March 2025 

 Year ended
31st March 2024 

 Year ended
31st March 2025 

 Year ended
31st March 2024 

 Year ended
31st March 2025 

 Year ended
31st March 2024 
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Rs In Lakhs

24  Finance Costs 

Interest Expense on Lease obligation 872.17       581.64            
Interest Expense- Debentures & Bonds 707.75       1,346.43         
Interest Expense - Bank & Others 4,936.59    4,878.71         
Other Borrowing Costs 348.99       291.31            

Total 6,865.50    7,098.09         

25  Other Expenses 

Power & Fuel 412.02       351.65            
Rent & License Fees 421.69       465.33            
Maintenance Charges 666.46       618.94            
Security Charges 89.36         74.37              
Insurance 47.04         33.25              
Rates & Taxes 92.35         123.65            
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 292.43       362.50            
Commission 33.46         43.93              
Professional & Legal Charges [Refer note - 26] 278.59       393.01            
Travelling & Conveyance expenses 197.79       297.07            
Internet and other communication expenses 96.87         83.26              
Amortisation of Security Deposit on Rent 70.56         60.63              
Loss on sale / discard of Fixed Assets 4.91          10.07              
Miscellaneous Expenses 456.92       404.51            

Total 3,160.45    3,322.17         

 Year ended
31st March 2025 

 Year ended
31st March 2024 

 Year ended
31st March 2025 

 Year ended
31st March 2024 



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'25
Rs. In Lakhs

26 Payment To Auditors

Particulars

Audit Fees 17.10                            17.10                                
Tax Audit Fees 1.80                              1.80                                  
Limited Review 2.10                              2.10                                  
Other Services 9.52                              7.98                                  

Total 30.52                            28.98                                

27 Information for Earnings per share as per IND AS 33

Net Profit (1,168.19)                      (346.97)                             
Weighted average number of shares 40,82,707 40,82,707
Earnings per share - Basic & diluted (28.61)                           (8.50)                                 

Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

As at 
31st March 2024

Particulars
As at

 31st March 2025



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'25
Rs. In Lakhs

28 Details of Borrowings:-
Details of Term Loans from Bank

Sl. Type of Loan Security

No.
1 Principal amount                    443.67 1,109.17      

Date Amount Date Amount
30-Apr-25 55.46            30-Apr-24 55.46      
31-May-25 55.46            31-May-24 55.46      
30-Jun-25 55.46            30-Jun-24 55.46      
31-Jul-25 55.46            31-Jul-24 55.46      

31-Aug-25 55.46            31-Aug-24 55.46      
30-Sep-25 55.46            30-Sep-24 55.46      
31-Oct-25 55.46            31-Oct-24 55.46      
30-Nov-25 55.46            30-Nov-24 55.46      

31-Dec-24 55.46      
31-Jan-25 55.46      
28-Feb-25 55.46      
31-Mar-25 55.46      
30-Apr-25 55.46      
31-May-25 55.46      
30-Jun-25 55.46      
31-Jul-25 55.46      

31-Aug-25 55.46      
30-Sep-25 55.46      
31-Oct-25 55.46      
30-Nov-25 55.46      

-          
2 Term Loan-Rupee Principal amount                1,998.40 4,498.90      

Date Amount Date Amount
30-Apr-25 166.70                30-Apr-24 166.70          

31-May-25 166.70                31-May-24 166.70          

30-Jun-25 166.70                30-Jun-24 166.70          

31-Jul-25 166.70                31-Jul-24 166.70          

31-Aug-25 166.70                31-Aug-24 166.70          

30-Sep-25 166.70                30-Sep-24 166.70          

31-Oct-25 166.70                31-Oct-24 166.70          

30-Nov-25 166.70                30-Nov-24 166.70          

31-Dec-25 166.70                31-Dec-24 166.70          

31-Jan-26 166.70                31-Jan-25 166.70          

28-Feb-26 166.70                28-Feb-25 166.70          

31-Mar-26 164.70                31-Mar-25 166.70          

30-Apr-25 166.70          

31-May-25 166.70          

30-Jun-25 166.70          

31-Jul-25 166.70          

31-Aug-25 166.70          

30-Sep-25 166.70          

31-Oct-25 166.70          

30-Nov-25 166.70          

31-Dec-25 166.70          

31-Jan-26 166.70          

28-Feb-26 166.70          

31-Mar-26 166.70          

30-Apr-26 166.70          

31-May-26 166.70          

30-Jun-26 164.70          

3 Term Loan-Rupee 10.25% Principal amount                2,291.67 4,791.67      

Date Amount Date Amount
30-Apr-25 208.33          30-Apr-24 208.33          
31-May-25 208.33          31-May-24 208.33          
30-Jun-25 208.33          30-Jun-24 208.33          
31-Jul-25 208.33          31-Jul-24 208.33          

31-Aug-25 208.33          31-Aug-24 208.33          
30-Sep-25 208.33          30-Sep-24 208.33          
31-Oct-25 208.33          31-Oct-24 208.33          
30-Nov-25 208.33          30-Nov-24 208.33          
31-Dec-25 208.33          31-Dec-24 208.33          
31-Jan-26 208.33          31-Jan-25 208.33          
28-Feb-26 208.33          28-Feb-25 208.33          

31-Mar-25 208.33          
30-Apr-25 208.33          
31-May-25 208.33          
30-Jun-25 208.33          
31-Jul-25 208.33          

31-Aug-25 208.33          
30-Sep-25 208.33          
31-Oct-25 208.33          
30-Nov-25 208.33          
31-Dec-25 208.33          
31-Jan-26 208.33          
28-Feb-26 208.33          

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

Working Capital_term 
Loan- Under ECLGS of 

NCGTC

9.25% p.a on 
oustanding INR

Second charge over all existing primary & collateral 
securities including mortagages created in favour of the 
bank, subject to the subsisting charges created over 
various primary and collateral securities, including 
securities charged by third parties.

Amount outstanding Amount outstanding

as on 31-Mar-25 as on 31-Mar-24

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

ROI as on 31-Mar-25

15%p.a on outstanding 
INR

1st Charge by way of Hypothecation / mortgage on all 
the fixed assets (movable and Immovable) of the 
company, both present and future excluding Vehicles. 
.The same is further secured by pledge of shares by a 
promoter shareholder 

First charge by way of Hypothecation / mortgage on all 
the fixed assets (movable and immovable) of the 
company, both present and future.Second charge by 
way of hypotecation of the entire Current assets of the 
company, existing and future, comprising , inter alia, of 
stocks of raw material, work in progress, finished goods, 
receivables, book debts nad other current assets.



4 Term Loan-Rupee 10.25% Principal amount                2,291.67 4,791.67      

Date Amount Date Amount
30-Apr-25 208.33          30-Apr-24 208.33          
31-May-25 208.33          31-May-24 208.33          
30-Jun-25 208.33          30-Jun-24 208.33          
31-Jul-25 208.33          31-Jul-24 208.33          

31-Aug-25 208.33          31-Aug-24 208.33          
30-Sep-25 208.33          30-Sep-24 208.33          
31-Oct-25 208.33          31-Oct-24 208.33          
30-Nov-25 208.33          30-Nov-24 208.33          
31-Dec-25 208.33          31-Dec-24 208.33          
31-Jan-26 208.33          31-Jan-25 208.33          
28-Feb-26 208.33          28-Feb-25 208.33          

31-Mar-25 208.33          
30-Apr-25 208.33          
31-May-25 208.33          
30-Jun-25 208.33          
31-Jul-25 208.33          

31-Aug-25 208.33          
30-Sep-25 208.33          
31-Oct-25 208.33          
30-Nov-25 208.33          
31-Dec-25 208.33          
31-Jan-26 208.33          
28-Feb-26 208.33          

Total Outstanding as at year end-Principal 7,025.41               15,191.41    
Current Maturities-Principal 6,527.30               7,665.90      

Sl. Type of Loan Security
No.

1 Principal amount                             -          1,600.00 

Date Amount Date Amount
21-Apr-24 1,600.00       

`

2 Principal amount                4,200.00        4,200.00 

Date Amount Date Amount
30-Jun-25 600.00                30-Jun-25 600.00          
30-Sep-25 600.00                30-Sep-25 600.00          
31-Dec-25 600.00                31-Dec-25 600.00          
31-Mar-26 600.00                31-Mar-26 600.00          
30-Jun-26 600.00                30-Jun-26 600.00          
30-Sep-26 600.00                30-Sep-26 600.00          
31-Dec-26 600.00                31-Dec-26 600.00          

3 Principal amount                             -             800.00 

Date Amount Date Amount
30-Jun-24 400.00        
30-Sep-24 400.00        

4 Principal amount                             -          1,000.00 

Date Amount Date Amount
31-Dec-24 500.00        
31-Mar-25 500.00        

5 Principal amount                1,200.00        1,200.00 

Date Amount Date Amount
31-Mar-27 600.00                31-Mar-27 600.00        
30-Jun-27 600.00                30-Jun-27 600.00        

Details of Vehicle Loan
Sl.

No.
1 Vehicle Loan 9.50% pa. on monthly 

reducing basis
Secured by first charge /mortgage on the respective 
vehicles

Principal amount-Rs.8 Lakhs                        7.63 -                

Amount outstanding Amount outstanding
as on 31-Mar-25 as on 31-Mar-24

  Equated Monthly Instalment of 
Rs.16,510/- each up to 

05/12/2029 

 Nil 
Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

Bond UnListed 
(INE711X07096)

10.25%p.a on 
outstanding INR

Average of 1 year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICICI Bank, 
HDFC Bank, SBI & Bank of Baroda plus applicable spread 
rates 

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

Bond UnListed 
(INE711X07088)

10.25%p.a on 
outstanding INR

Average of 1 year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICICI Bank, 
HDFC Bank, SBI & Bank of Baroda plus applicable spread 
rates 

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

Bond Listed 
(INE711X07054)

10.25%p.a on 
outstanding INR

Average of 1 year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICICI Bank, 
HDFC Bank, SBI & Bank of Baroda plus applicable spread 
rates 

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

Bond Listed 
(INE711X07062)

10.25%p.a on 
outstanding INR

Average of 1 year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICICI Bank, 
HDFC Bank, SBI & Bank of Baroda plus applicable spread 
rates 

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

First charge by way of Hypothecation / mortgage on all 
the fixed assets (movable and immovable) of the 
company, both present and future.Second charge by 
way of hypotecation of the entire Current assets of the 
company, existing and future, comprising , inter alia, of 
stocks of raw material, work in progress, finished goods, 
receivables, book debts nad other current assets.

Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule

ROI as on 31-Mar-25 Amount outstanding Amount outstanding
as on 31-Mar-25 as on 31-Mar-24

Type of Loan ROI as on 31-Mar-25 Security

Bond Listed 48 Cr 
(INE711X07070)

10.25%p.a on 
outstanding INR

Average of 1 year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICICI Bank, 
HDFC Bank, SBI & Bank of Baroda plus applicable spread 
rates 
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29 Related Party Disclosure

I) Key Managerial Personnel & Other Directors
Key Managerial Personnel Description of Relationship

1 Mr. Gautam Jatia Managing Director  & Chief Executive Officer
2 Mr. Sujoy Chattaraj Wholetime Director 
3 Ms. Chadaravalli Srinivasa Bhatta Nalini Wholetime Director
4 Mr. Anurag Jatia Wholetime Director 
5 Mr. Bimal Agarwal [Joined w.e.f 29-04-2023 & Resigned on 31-05-2024] Chief Financial Officer
6 Ms. Amrita Bhattacharya [Resigned on 20-12-2023] Company Secretary 
7 Ms. Priyanka Agrawal [Joined w.e.f 12-02-2024 & Resigned on 14-05-2025] Company Secretary 

Other Directors
1 Mr. Debashish Bhaumik [ Resigned on 17-07-2024 ] Independent Director
2 Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah [ Resigned on 14-08-2024 ] Independent Director
3 Mrs. Karabi Sengupta Independent Director
4 Mr. Ram Gobind Ganeriwala [ Appointed on 13-08-2024 & Resigned on 26-12-2024 ] Independent Director
5 Mr. Hari Mohan Marda [Appointed on 29-05-2024 ] Independent Director
6 Mr. Ravi Kumar Sharma [Appointed on 12-02-2025] Independent Director

III) Relatives of Key Mangerial personnel
1 Mrs. Vandana Jatia

IV) Entities having significant influence over the group

1

2 Suraj Finvest Private Limited [ name changed from Sneha Gardens Pvt. Ltd. ] [ Company is an associate of the Entity ]
3 Diwakar Finvest Private limited ( formerly known as Sneha enclave private ltd )[ Company is an associate of the Entity ]

V) Other related parties with which Company has transaction
1 AMRI Hospitals Ltd. (up to 20.09.2023)
2 Archana promoters & Developers Pvt Ltd
3 Emami Agrotech Ltd.
4 Emami Realty Ltd.
5 Emami Art Pvt. Ltd
6 Emami Ltd.
7 Emami Paper Mills Ltd.
8 Emami Foundation
9 M Bhattacharyya & Co. Pvt. Ltd.

10 Niramay Distributors Pvt Ltd.
11 PAN Emami Cosmed Ltd.
12 Premier Ferro Alloys & Securities Ltd .
13 Shopper's city maintenance company Pvt ltd
14 South city Projects Kolkata Ltd.
15 Shri Prashant Goenka
16 Nayee Disha Communications Pvt ltd
17 Shri Jayant Goenka 
18 Smt Priti A Surekha 
19 A M Medical Centre Pvt Ltd
20 Emami Frank Ross Limited Employees Gratuity Fund
21 The Trustees Frank Ross Limited Employees Provident Fund

Details of Related Party Transactions Rs in Lakhs
Description of relationship Nature of

with party Transaction 2024-25 2023-24 As on 31.03.25 As on 31.03.24
Key Managerial Personnel Salary 176.44              324.17           (9.01)                        (8.47)                           

Perquisites 10.95                 17.16             -                            -                               
Sale of Goods 0.81                   0.59                0.03                          0.03                             
Loans & Advance Given 17.80                 96.63             19.44                       24.17                          

Other Directors Sitting fees 2.70                   3.15                -                            (0.14)                           
Salary 15.08                 13.76             0.76                          (0.76)                           
Perquisites 1.51                   1.51                -                            -                               

Other Entities Sale of Goods 78.54                 3,346.79       127.06                    52.12                          
Facility Management Fees 4.26                   -                  
Display Charges 32.71                 49.66             15.38                       -                               
Rent Received 0.47                   0.47                0.25                          -                               
Dividend Received 0.80                   0.80                -                            -                               
Purchase of Assets -                      -                  -                            -                               
Purchase of Goods 8,202.13          9,433.15       (499.59)                  (429.08)                      
Guarantee Commission Paid 8.19                   81.54             (5.32)                        -                               
Interest on Loan taken 3,163.28          2,084.92       (856.50)                  (644.08)                      
Rent & maintenance paid 419.74              406.42           (32.52)                     (96.94)                         
Royalty 11.80                 11.80             -                            -                               
Electricity Charges 64.79                 31.52             1.57                          (1.92)                           
Interest on Loan Given -                      -                  -                            -                               
Donation Paid 6.00                   6.00                -                            -                               
Advance/Deposit given 11.29                 1,777.00       255.13                    820.02                        
Reimursment of exp 225.57              318.66           45.51                       -                               
Loan Given refunded -                      -                  -                            -                               
Loan Taken 20,814.73        38,768.00     (40,241.50)            (38,393.00)                
Loan Taken refund back 18,966.23        5,363.00       -                            -                               
Post employment benefit expense 50.00                 10.00             (169.99)                  (161.56)                      

**- Figures in brackets denote Credit Balance

For the Financial year Amount outstanding **

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel

PAN Emami Cosmed Limited [named changed from Midkot Investments Limited]
[Company was an associate of the Entity upto 14.02.2023. Now a promoter company]
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Rs. In Lakhs

30

31 Contingent Liabilities & Commitments :-
a Contingent Liabilities

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Bank Guarantees 600.78         586.78                 
Disputed GST Demands under appeal 161.22         161.22                 
Disputed Income Tax Demand under appeal(CIT) 67.47           -                        

b Commitments

32 Assets given on Operating Lease

a

b

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Lease contributions for the year 0.40                     0.40                       
Minimum Lease payment contributions
-Not later than one Year 0.40                     0.40                       
-Later than one year but not later than five years 2.00                     2.00                       
-Later than 5 years 12.40                  12.80                     

33 Assets taken on Operating Lease

a

-Not later than one Year 2,149.36            1,560.05             1,206.51     875.71                 
-Later than 1 Year 6,663.55            4,949.57             6,533.63     4,853.07             

Particulars

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable 
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Therefore, Net Deferred Tax Asset of Rs. 4,131.18 lakhs (P.Y.- 
Rs.3,833.22 lakhs) has been recognised till date in the accounts in compliance with IND AS 12 on" Income Taxes"

Contingent Liability disclosed above represents possible obligations where the possibility of cash outflow to settle the obligation is remote 
.

The Holding company has given assets under non-cancellable operating lease . The total lease rent received on the same is Rs. 0.40 Lakhs- 
[ P.Y - Rs 0.40 Lakhs ]
The minimum future lease rentals receivable in respect of non-cancellable lease as at 31-March-25 are as under:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital account & not provided Rs. Nil (P.Y. Rs.Nil/-).

The Holding company has taken shops on rent. The total minimum lease payments and present value of minimum
lease payments are as follows:-

31-Mar-25

 Minimum 
Lease payments 

 Present value of 
Minimum lease 

payments 

31-Mar-24

 Minimum 
Lease 

payments 

 Present value of 
Minimum lease 

payments 

Particulars

The difference between minimum lease payments and the present value of minimum lease payments of Rs. 2303.29 lakhs (P.Y- Rs.
2011.36 lakhs) represents interest not due .



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'25
Rs. In Lakhs

Defined benefit plan  
34.1  Defined benefit plan  (Gratuity)

i

Particulars

A Components of Employer Expenses
1 Current Service Cost 96.80            118.59          
2 Past service Cost -                -                
3 Loss/(Gain) on settlement -                -                
4 Net interest income/(cost) on the net defined benefit liability 

(Asset)
11.31            13.11            

5 Total Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 108.11          131.70          

B Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet as at 31st 
March 2025

1 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 650.36          636.96          
2 Fair value of plan assets 480.37          475.40          
3 Funded Status [Surplus/(deficit)] (169.99)        (161.56)         
4 Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet (169.99)        (161.56)        

C Change in Defined Benefit Obligation during the year ended 
31st March 2025

1 Present value of DBO at beginning of period    636.96          641.95          
2 Current Service Cost        96.80            118.59          
3 Interest Cost        44.59            46.22            
4 Re-measurement (or actuarial)(gain)/loss arising from -                -                

-Change in demographic assumptions -                -                
-Change in financial assumptions (53.25)          (138.02)         
-Experience variation (i.e Actual experience vs assumptions) 0.76              (7.51)             

5 Past Service cost -                -                
6 Benefits Paid   (75.49)          (24.26)           
7 Acquisition adjustment -                
8 Effect of business combinations or disposals -                
7 Present value of DBO at the end of period   650.37          636.97          

D Change in Fair Value of Assets
1 Fair value of Planned assets at beginning of period 475.41          459.90          
2 Investment income 33.28            33.11            
3 Employer's contribution 51.03            5.38              
4 Benefits paid (75.49)          (24.26)           
5 Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net 

interest expense
(3.85)             1.28              

-                
6 Acquistion adjustment
7 Fair value of Plan assets at end of the period 480.38          475.41          

E Other Comprehensive Income
1 Actuarial (gains)/Losees

-Changes in demographic assumptions -                -                
-Changes in financial assumptions (53.25)          (138.02)         
-Experience variance (i.e Actual experience vs assumptions) 0.76              (7.51)             

2 Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net 
interest expense

3.85              (1.28)             

3 Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 
comprehensive income 

(48.64)          (146.82)         

Gratuity: The Group has a defined Gratuity Plan for its employees. Every employee who has completed five years or more of
service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Scheme is
funded with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Gratuity Funded Gratuity Funded



ii The Major categories of plan assets as a % of total plan assets

Fund managed by insurer 100% 100%

iii Assumptions

Financial assumptions
Discount rate % 6.75% 7.00%
Rate of increase in salaries 6% p.a 7% p.a
Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate (% of IALM 2012-14) 100% 100%
Normal retirement age 58 years 58 years
Attrition rates, based on age(% p.a) for all ages 2% p.a 2% p.a

iv Sensitivity analysis

Revenue from operation

Defined benefit obligation base 650.36          636.96          

Particulars Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
a Discount rate (-/ +1%) 722.85             589.19          710.25             575.29          

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 11.15% -9.41% 11.51% -9.68%
b Salary growth rate (-/ +1%) 587.84             722.76          575.09             709.12          

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -9.61% 11.13% -9.71% 11.33%
c Attrition rate (-/ +50%) 647.17             652.98          638.22             635.72          

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -0.49% 0.40% 0.20% -0.20%
d Mortality rate (-/ +10%) 649.71             651.00          636.91             637.01          

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -0.10% 0.10% -0.01% 0.01%

v Effect of plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows
a) Funding arrangements and funding policy

b)
Particulars

The Company's best estimate of Contribution during the next
year

272.52          267.99          

c) Maturity profile of Defined benefit obligation
Particulars

Weighted average duration ( based on discounted cash flows) 11 years 12 years

Expected cash flows over the next years (valed on undiscounted 
basis)
1 year 62.90            57.87            
2 to 5 years 175.95          175.06          
6 to 10 years 235.60          206.43          
More than 10 years 1,081.72       1,188.32       

Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

 Year ended 31st March 2025  Year ended 31st March 2024

Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

The Group has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees . Every year , the insurance
company carries out a funding valuation based on the latest emplyee data provided by the Group. Any deficit in the assets
arising as a reult of such valuation is funded by the Group.

Expected contibution during the next annual reporting period
Year ended 

31st March 2025
Year ended 

31st March 2024

Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated .

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate expected salary
increase and mortality . The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the
assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period , while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of
sensitivity analysis is given below:-
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Defined benefit plan  
34.2 Defined benefit plan  -Leave

Particulars

A Components of Employer Expenses
1 Current Service Cost 50.45          64.38                      
2 Past service Cost -               -                          
3 Loss/(Gain) on settlement -               -                          
4 Net interest income/(cost) on the net defined benefit liability 

(Asset)
10.47          9.37                        

5 change in demographic assumptions
6 Actuarial (gains)/ Losses due to Change in financial assumption (17.65)         (47.56)                    

7 Actuarial (gains)/ Losses due to Change in experience variance 20.11          36.08                      

8 Total Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 63.38          62.27                      

B Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet as at 31st 
March 2025

1 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 173.53        149.51                   
2 Fair value of plan assets -               -                          
3 Funded Status [Surplus/(deficit)] (173.53)       (149.51)                  
4 Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet (173.53)       (149.51)                  

C Change in Defined Benefit Obligation during the year ended 
31st March 2025

1 Present value of DBO at beginning of period    149.51        130.07                   
2 Current Service Cost        50.45          64.38                      
3 Interest Cost        10.47          9.36                        
4 Re-measurement (or actuarial)(gain)/loss arising from -               -                          

-Change in demographic assumptions -               -                          
-Change in financial assumptions (17.65)         (47.56)                    
-Experience variation (i.e Actual experioence vs assumptions) 20.11          36.08                      

5 Past Service cost -               -                          
6 Benefits Paid   (39.35)         (42.82)                    
7 Acquisition adjustment -               
8 Effect of business combinations or disposals -               
7 Present value of DBO at the end of period   173.54        149.51                   

D Change in Fair Value of Assets
1 Fair value of Planned assets at beginning of period -               -                          
2 Investment income -               -                          
3 Employer's contribution 39.35          42.82                      
4 Benefits paid (39.35)         (42.82)                    
5 Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net 

interest expense
-               -                          

6 Acquistion adjustment
7 Fair value of Plan assets at end of the period -               -                          

Year ended
 31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Leave encashment Leave encashment

Unfunded Unfunded



ii The Major categories of plan assets as a % of total plan assets

Fund managed by insurer NA NA

iii Assumptions

Financial assumptions
Discount rate % 6.75% 7.00%
Rate of increase in salaries 6% p.a. 7% p.a.
Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate (% of IALM 2012-14) 100% 100%
Normal retirement age 58 years 58 years
Attrition rates, based on age(% p.a) for all ages 2% p.a 2% p.a

iv Sensitivity analysis

Revenue from operation

Defined benefit obligation base 173.53 149.51

Particulars Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
a Discount rate (-/ +1%) 195.91             155.02        169.42       133.08                   

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 12.89% -10.67% 13.32% -10.99%
b Salary growth rate (-/ +1%) 153.71             197.17        132.01       170.41                   

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -11.42% 13.62% -11.70% 13.98%
c Attrition rate (-/ +50%) 171.78             175.05        149.00       149.95                   

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -1.01% 0.87% -0.34% 0.29%
d Mortality rate (-/ +10%) 173.33             173.73        149.45       149.57                   

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -0.12% 0.11% -0.04% 0.04%

v Effect of plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows
a) Maturity profile of Defined benefit obligation

Particulars

Weighted average duration ( based on discounted cash flows) 12 Years 12 Years

Expected cash flows over the next years (valued on 
undiscounted basis)
1 year 13.47           9.71                        
2 to 5 years 36.98           33.22                      
6 to 10 years 57.33           44.25                      
More than 10 years 368.99        355.10                   

Year ended
 31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Year ended
 31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate expected salary
increase and mortality . The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonablepossible changes of the
assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period , while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of
sensitivity analysis is given below:-

Year ended
 31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Year ended
 31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Year ended
 31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated .

Year ended
 31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024
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35 Fair Value Measurement

a)  Financial Instruments by category Rs. in Lakhs

Amortised Cost FVTOCI At Cost Amortised Cost FVTOCI At Cost
Financial Assets
Investment in Equity shares (Quoted) -                              58.36               -                     -                          43.29               -                     
Investment in Equity shares (Unquoted) -                              61.06               -                     -                          165.10             -                     
Investment in Equity shares (Unquoted) -                              -                     -                          -                     
Investment in Preference Shares (Unquoted) -                              73.06               -                     -                          67.13               -                     
Investment in Debentures (Unquoted) -                              400.30            -                     -                          425.00             -                     
Trade Receivables 6,315.72                  -                    -                     7,346.31                -                    -                     
Loans and Advances 44,770.96                -                    -                     53,147.35             -                    -                     
Other Financial Assets 2,031.57                  -                    -                     1,408.60                -                    -                     
Cash and Cash Equivalents 771.92                      -                    -                      717.58                   -                    -                     
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings(including interest accrued) 63,285.86                -                    -                     69,283.34             -                    -                     
Trade Payables 4,923.32                  -                    -                     5,575.64                -                    -                     
Lease Liabilities 6,509.62                  -                    -                     5,728.78                -                    -                     
Other Financial Liabilities 1,886.98                  -                    -                     1,011.20                -                    -                     

b) Fair Value Hierarchy

Particulars Fair Value 
Hierarchy

 As at  As at 

Financial Assets 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Investment in Equity Share(Quoted) Level 1 58.36                43.29                 
Investment in Equity Share(Unquoted) Level 2 61.06                165.10               

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities. 

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

(c)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost :

Carying Value Fair Value Carying Value Fair Value
Financial Assets
Investment in Preference Shares (Unquoted) -                              -                    -                      -                          
Investment in Debentures (Unquoted) -                              -                    -                      -                          
Security Deposit 1,520.08                  1,520.08         1,396.66           1,396.66                
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings(including interest accrued) 63,285.86                63,285.86      69,283.34         69,283.34             

When the fair value of unquoted instruments cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, the group carries such instruments at cost
less impairment, if applicable.

Particulars
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

The Group uses Discounted Cash Flow Valuation Technique which involves determination of present value of expected receipt 
discounted using appropriate discounting rate.

The Management has assessed that the Fair Value of other financial assets and liabilities (fixed deposits, short term loans and advances 
and other current liabilities) approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short term nature of these instruments. Fair value 
of non-current financial instruments (other than above) approximates to their carrying value which is based on effective interest rate.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidated sale.

Based on the evaluation of Trade Receivables, allowances are considered to account for the expected losses of these receivables. As at
end of each reporting year, the carrying amount of such receivables , net of allowances (if any) , are not materially different from their
calculated Fair values.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

31 March 2024

The fair value of financial assets & liabilities is classified in various fair value hierarchy based on following three levels:-

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted price included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
market approach and valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. 

Particulars
31 March 2025
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36 Financial risk management

(A) Credit risk

(B) Liquidity risk

Year ended 31.3.2025
Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 8,928.65                     53,500.71          -                                 62,429.36   
Interest on borrowings 856.50                         -                       -                                 856.50         
Trade Payables 4,923.32                     -                       -                                 4,923.32      
Employee Benefits Payable 840.22                         -                       -                                 840.22         
Other Liabilities 86.17                           -                       -                                 86.17            
Total 15,634.86                  53,500.71         -                                  69,135.57  

Year ended 31.3.2024
Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 11,065.90                   57,573.36          -                                 68,639.26   
Interest on borrowings 644.08                         -                       -                                 644.08         
Trade Payables 5,575.65                     -                       -                                 5,575.65      
Employee Benefits Payable 831.79                         -                       -                                 831.79         
Other Liabilities 114.62                         -                       -                                 114.62         
Total 18,232.04                  57,573.36         -                                  75,805.40  

The Group does not have any derivative financial liability.The following are the remaining contractual maturities
of non derivative financial liabilities at the reporting period:

The Group’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse
effects on the financial performance of the Group, the Group has risk management policies as described below :-

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group fails to honour its financial obligations in accordance with terms of
contract. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when
due and to close out market positions. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity position
and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the Group’s liquidity management
policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these,
monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining
debt financing plans.

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss arising from default / failure by the counterparty to meet financial
obligations as per the terms of contract. The Group is exposed to credit risk for receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, financial guarantees. None of the financial instruments of the Group result in material concentration
of credit risks. Credit risk on receivables is minimum since sales through different mode are made after judging
credit worthiness of the customers or advance payment . The history of defaults has been minimal and
outstanding receivables are regularly monitored. For credit risk on the loans to parties, the Group is not
expecting any material risk on account of non-performance by any of the parties.The Group creates allowances
for all unsecured receivables and advances based on lifetime expected credit loss. The Group has written off the
Expected credit loss amounting to Rs. Nil (PY: Rs.Nil )in current year.



( C) Market risk

There is no transaction which will result in foreign currency exposure during the year .

Rs in lakhs

Particulars
Increase/ decrease 

in Basis points
Effect on Profit 

before tax

31.03.2025 +0.50 (316.43)              
-0.50 316.43                

31.03.2024 +0.50 (346.42)              
-0.50 346.42                

(iii) Price risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from short term and long-term borrowings with variable rates, which
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible changes in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables remaining constant, the company's profit
before tax  is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

The Group’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held - both quoted and unquoted
and classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through OCI or at fair value through profit or loss. The
Group is not expecting high risk exposure from its investment in securities.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

Foreign Currency paid for the year w.r.t imports amounts to Rs.Nil (PY:Rs. 121.78 Lakhs), and w.r.t travelling
amounts to Rs. NIL (PY: Rs.2.82 Lakhs ).
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39 Since the Group operates only in one segment i.e. retailing and also in one country i.e. India, hence information on segment reporting with respect to operating
and geographical segment is not provided .

40

41

42

43 Advance to Employees Provident Fund Trust

44

45

46 Disclosure in relation to undisclosed income
The Group have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the current

47 Details of Benami Property held

48 Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC).

49 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency 

50 Disclosure for no wilful default

51 Rounding-Off requirements

52

In terms of our attached report of even date SD/-
For Agrawal Tondon & Co. Sujoy Chattaraj
Chartered Accountants Director
FRN:-329088E DIN - 08818352

SD/-
Mamta Jain
Partner 
Membership No. 061299

Dated : 29th May 2025
Place : Kolkata

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Gautam Jatia
Managing Director

DIN - 00604926

The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current and previous financial year.

The Group has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Rs. In lakhs, which is also the Group’s functional currency. All values are rounded 
off to the nearest Rs. In lakhs up to two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

SD/-

The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) 
Rules, 2017.

and previous financial year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 
1961).

The Group does not have any Benami property. Further, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Group for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period as at March 31, 2025.

A) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or other kind of funds) to or in any other 
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

B) The Group has not received any funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries.  

The Group has decided to dissolve the "Frank Ross Employees Provident Fund Trust" & transfer the fund into EPFO. Therfore, the said advance has been given to 
fund the trust till all investments are redeemed.

Relationship with Struck off Companies 
The Group do not have any transactions with company’s struck off during the current and previous financial year.

Compliance with number of layers of companies.

The Group is filing monthly statement of Inventories, Trade payables and Trade receivables to banks for working capital loan which have no material discrepancies.

Financing disclosure

Immovable Property
All the title deeds of the immovable property disclosed in Note No.2 of the financial statements (other than properties where the Group is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Group.

Reconciliation and reasons of material discrepancies, in monthly statements submitted to bank and books of accounts.


